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Financial Highlights

B 51 &

2014 2013
—E—E —_F—= %
Increase/
Us$'oo0 US$'000 (Decrease)
FEx FET # Orl)
Operating Results KA
Revenue Wz 103,397 110,047 (6.0)
EBITDA RAEXH - FIE &
Ko B $H A g A 5,611 5,687 (1.3)
Operating profit el 4,855 4,929 (1.5)
Profit for the year FE R A 4,456 5,332 (16.4)
Financial Position BTG ARR
Total assets BEBRE 50,715 61,425 (17.4)
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 14,611 24,335 (40.0)
Net assets BEFE 32,717 42,746 (23.5)
Financial Ratio B 76 b &
Current ratio (Times) REI R (f2) 1.4 1.9 (26.3)
Gearing ratio (%) BERBREEE (%) - - N/A N3
Dividends and Distribution BRIk
Distribution per share (HK cents) BRI (L) 14.64 - NJA N5E R
Interim dividend per share (HK cents) — &FAZA HAMGE (B1L) 1.0 1.6 37.5
Final dividend per share (HK cents) BRRARERE (BL) 1.21 1.2 0.8
Full year dividend and distribution FheEFERER
per share (HK cents) ik (Bl 16.85 2.8 501.8
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Breakdown of Revenue by Nature

BEBUEE s 2 W

O Sales of merchandise 7 in #H % ‘ Provision of services 2 AR TS

Breakdown of Shipment Value by Market
BEmis8o 2 NEERE
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50%
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Shipment Value
NEEHRE

(US$'million) (B &37T)

262.6 275.5

FY2014 FY2013
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Statement of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
T EFITHAHRES
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On behalf of the board ("Board") of directors (“Directors”), | wish to present the annual
results of Linmark Group Limited ("Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the "Group” or
“"Linmark") for the year ended 30 April 2014.

During the latest financial year, the business environment remained unstable, and this
led to the waning in confidence of some of our customers. With mixed economic signals
being reported in parts of Europe and the United States, geopolitical instability and slowing
growth in emerging markets, these and other factors led some of our customers to adopt
a more conservative approach towards restocking inventory, the effects of which were felt
by the Group particularly towards the second half of the financial year. Consequently, both
business segments, comprising sales of merchandise and provision of services, experienced a
tapering in shipment value. Nonetheless, the Group achieved a profit level comparable with
the preceding year, where a one-time gain from the Indian tax refunds recorded in the last
financial year is excluded.

To mitigate the impact of weakening business momentum, we sought to further encourage
cross-selling to boost sales with our existing customers, while at the same time explore new
business opportunities. Given the importance of e-commerce, we looked at establishing new
business ties with companies that practise online retailing, thus broadening our exposure
to an increasingly important global business platform. With regards to the Group's product
portfolio, we have been meticulously examining various countries with the goal of bolstering
our product line-up with appealing new goods. This fulfils the dual objectives of satisfying
the needs of our customers while further enriching the Group's existing product lines. And
towards similar ends, our management team has maintained a close eye on merger and
acquisition opportunities, and will duly seize on such opportunities where they allow the
Group to further expand its product offerings and scope of services.

Even though the outlook for the global economy remains uncertain, Linmark has a solid
foundation on which to not just persevere, but to grow over the long term. With a
diversified portfolio of products and services, trusted groups of customers and vendors,
and an experienced management team, we remain optimistic about the Group's long-term
prospects despite the near-term challenges.

At this time, | would like to take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to the members of
the Board for their commitment and contributions during the year. | wish to also express my
appreciation to the management team and the entire Linmark workforce for their diligence
and dedication to the development of the Group. Certainly, all of our shareholders must be
thanked as well for their staunch support of Linmark over the past year, and undoubtedly in
the years to come.

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15 July 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B B am M AT

Business Review

Overview

The business environment remained erratic during the year
ended 30 April 2014, with parts of Europe and the United
States ("US") showing signs of sporadic economic growth, while
geopolitical instability and slowing growth in emerging markets
tempered the confidence of a sustained economic recovery.
These and other factors led some of the Group's customers to
adopt a more cautious approach towards restocking inventory.
Despite the efforts made in establishing new business ties
and encouraging cross-selling among existing customers,
the Group's business momentum was weakened, particularly
during the second half of the financial year. As a result, both
of its business segments, specifically sales of merchandise and
provision of services, experienced a decline in shipment value,
with overall shipment volume dropped by approximately 4.7%
from approximately US$275.5 million (equivalent to HK$2,148.9
million) last year to approximately US$262.6 million (equivalent
to HK$2,048.3 million) this year.

The Group's revenue fell by approximately 6.0% from
approximately US$110.0 million (equivalent to HK$858.0
million) last year to approximately US$103.4 million (equivalent
to HK$806.5 million) for the reporting year.

Gross profit decreased by roughly 2.2% from approximately
US$27.6 million (equivalent to HK$215.3 million) last year to
approximately US$27.0 million (equivalent to HK$210.6 million)
this year.

On the cost side, general and administrative expenses decreased
slightly from approximately US$23.5 million (equivalent to
HK$183.3 million) last year to approximately US$23.3 million
(equivalent to HK$181.7 million) this year.

For the year ended 30 April 2014, the Group recorded a profit
of approximately US$4.5 million (equivalent to HK$35.1
million). The Group's profit last year was approximately US$5.3
million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million), which included Indian
tax refunds of approximately US$0.8 million (equivalent to
HK$6.3 million). Excluding the Indian tax refunds, the Group
achieved a profit level comparable with the preceding year.
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Segmental Analysis

Operating Segmentation

The Group's business comprises two operating segments: (i)
sales of merchandise including garments, fashion accessories,
hardgoods, consumer electronic products and labels; and (i)
provision of services including procurement and value-added
services relating to the procurement agency business.

Shipment value

For the year ended 30 April

2014 2013

US$' million US$' million

Provision of services 175.8 182.5
Sales of merchandise 86.8 93.0
Total 262.6 275.5

Shipment value from the provision of services fell by
approximately 3.7% to approximately US$175.8 million
(equivalent to HK$1,371.2 million), accounting for roughly
66.9% of the Group's total shipment value.

Shipment value from sales of merchandise declined by
approximately 6.7% to approximately US$86.8 million
(equivalent to HK$677.0 million), contributing to around 33.1%
of the Group's total shipment value. The drop was attributable
to a decrease in orders from certain European customers in the

second half of the financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE LT

Geographical Segmentation

Shipment value

For the year ended 30 April

2014 2013

US$' million US$' million

North America 131.8 138.5
Europe 69.3 76.1
Others 61.5 60.9
Total 262.6 275.5

During the year under review, shipments to North America
dropped by approximately 4.8% to approximately US$131.8
million (equivalent to HK$1,028.0 million). The drop was
mainly attributable to fewer orders placed by certain US-based
customers whose businesses were affected by the weak retail
environment. Nevertheless, North America remained the largest
market of the Group, accounting for approximately 50.2% of
the Group's total shipment value.

Shipments to Europe decreased by approximately 8.9% to
approximately US$69.3 million (equivalent to HK$540.5 million),
mainly due to the decline in business of certain customers
in the second half of the financial year. Shipments to Europe
accounted for approximately 26.4% of the Group's total
shipment value.

Shipments grouped under "Others", comprising mainly
shipments to the southern hemisphere, remained relatively
stable. Shipments increased by approximately 1.0% to
approximately US$61.5 million (equivalent to HK$479.7 million).
Others represented approximately 23.4% of the Group's total
shipment value.
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Hong Kong Tax Case

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received
protective assessments amounting to approximately
HK$135,000,000 (equivalent to US$17,308,000) from the Inland
Revenue Department of Hong Kong ("IRD") in respect of queries
on the modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability
of profits for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to
2007/2008.

In response to enquiries from the IRD with the assistance of
an independent tax advisor, certain relevant information has
been furnished to the IRD for review and objections have been
lodged by the Group against the protective assessments. In
addition, Tax Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000
(equivalent to US$673,000) have been purchased by two
subsidiaries of the Company in pursuit of the holdover of tax
demanded under protective assessments for these years.

The tax case is still at an information exchange stage. Despite
the uncertainty about its outcome, the Group maintains
the view that sufficient tax provision has been made in the
financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SRR EL YR

Financial Review

The Group's financial position remains healthy with cash and
cash equivalents of approximately US$14.6 million (equivalent
to HK$113.9 million) as at 30 April 2014. In addition, the Group
has total banking facilities of approximately US$20.8 million
(equivalent to HK$162.2 million), including borrowing facilities
of approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to HK$3.1 million)
as at 30 April 2014.

The Group has a current ratio of approximately 1.4 and a
gearing ratio of zero, based on no interest-bearing borrowings
and total equity of approximately US$32.7 million (equivalent
to HK$255.1 million) as at 30 April 2014. There has not been
any material change in the Group's borrowings since 30 April
2014.

Trade receivables increased from approximately US$5.5
million (equivalent to HK$42.9 million) as at 30 April 2013 to
approximately US$6.2 million (equivalent to HK$48.4 million)
as at 30 April 2014. Gross trade receivables aged over 90 days,
which amounted to approximately US$0.8 million (equivalent to
HK$6.2 million), are being carefully monitored by management.
Approximately US$0.4 million (equivalent to HK$3.1 million) of
these balances were covered by the impairment.

The Group's net asset value as at 30 April 2014 was
approximately US$32.7 million (equivalent to HK$255.1 million).

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 30 April
2014 and there has been no material change since then.

The majority of the Group's transactions during the year under
review were denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
To minimise exchange risks, sales and purchases are generally
transacted in the same currency.
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Remuneration Policy and Staff Development Scheme
As at 30 April 2014, the Group had 407 staff (2013: 422
staff). Total staff costs for the year under review amounted to
approximately US$16.1 million (equivalent to HK$125.6 million)
(2013: US$16.0 million (equivalent to HK$124.8 million)).
The Group offers competitive remuneration schemes to its
employees based on industry practices, along with individual
and the Group's performance. In addition, share options and
discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible staff based on
his or her individual performance and that of the Group.

Update on the Creditors' Voluntary Liquidation of
Linmark Electronics Limited (“LEL")

Reference is made to the disclosure on pages 10 to 13 of the
Company's 2013 annual report for the year ended 30 April
2013 in relation to the creditors' voluntary liquidation of LEL
("Liquidation").

During the year under review, a third and final dividend of 0.18
pence in the pound on the unsecured claim filed by the Group
was declared by LEL and the Group was entitled to the third
and final dividend payment of GBP162.55. Together with the
dividends received in previous financial year, the total dividend
received amounted to approximately GBP47,000 (equivalent to
US$74,000 or HK$576,000). According to the liquidators' report
and confirmation received by the Group, LEL will be dissolved
in about three months' time after the final meetings held on 25
June 2014.

As disclosed in the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 31 October 2009, the unaudited total net
liabilities of LEL included in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group amounted to approximately
US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million). Upon the
commencement of the Liquidation, a non-cash profit of
approximately US$5.3 million (equivalent to HK$41.3 million)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 30 April 2010 of the Group as a gain on
liquidation of a subsidiary. Save for the gain on liquidation of a
subsidiary and dividend income as disclosed before, the Board
does not expect the Liquidation to have any other material

impact on the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE LT

Prospects

The business environment is expected to remain uncertain in
the coming year and confidence among several of the Group's
customers is expected to be weak, leading to the adoption of
a conservative approach in replenishing inventory and keeping
their purchase prices low.

With rising labour costs and stringent industry demands on
social compliance looming, management anticipates mounting
pressure on the Group's margin in the coming financial year.
In tandem with managing costs and bolstering efficiency, the
Group will continue to investigate opportunities for expanding
its customer base and explore more production locations that
are competitive and able to fulfill the evolving needs of its
customers.

Moreover, management will continue to seek mergers and
acquisitions opportunities that can broaden the Group's
product offerings and scope of services.

Going forward, even though the Group may experience
pressure in achieving near-term growth, management remains
optimistic about the Group's long-term prospects given its
solid foundation and the development measures that are being
implemented.
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Biographical Details of Directors,

Senior Management and Company Secretary

E5m

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis
HEF

REIRE N ABIMEER

Executive Directors and senior
management

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, aged 60, is an executive director and the
chairman of the Company and became the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 8 October 2010. He
is mainly responsible for the Group's corporate and strategy
planning and business development. Mr. Wang joined the
Group in 1998 as chairman. He is a co-founder, an executive
director and chairman of Roly International Holdings Ltd.
("Roly International”), an intermediate holding company of
the Company which was listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Wang has over 30 years of experience in the trading and
distribution business. Mr. Wang is a vice-chairman of China
Association for Small & Medium Commercial Enterprises,
a member of the China Overseas Friendship Association, a
member of Shanghai Chinese Overseas Friendship Association,
a standing executive of Hong Kong Association for the
Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of China, a honorary
court member of The Hong Kong Baptist University, a member
of Hong Kong-Taiwan Business Co-operation Committee,
the honorary chairman of Taiwan Business Association (HK)
Limited, a director of the Soochow Management Academic
Foundation of Soochow University and a director of the Taiwan
Design Center. Mr. Wang was awarded the Directors of The Year
Awards 2005 hosted by The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration
from Soochow University, Taiwan and an EMBA degree from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University, PRC.

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, aged 44, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company with effect from 1
September 2010. Mr. Wong has been the chief financial officer
of the Group since 2006 and oversees the finance, legal,
shipping, IT and HR functions of the Group. Prior to that, Mr.
Wong was the head of corporate development department of
Roly International, an intermediate holding company of the
Company, primarily responsible for Roly International and the
Group's corporate development, mergers and acquisitions and
investor relations activities. Before joining Roly International
in 2000, Mr. Wong had worked at several major international
financial institutions where he gained extensive experience in
finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston
University in the US, and a Bachelor of Science degree from
The University of British Columbia in Canada.
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WONG Wai Ming
=IEH

WANG Arthur Minshiang
F

Non-executive Director

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, aged 56, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Wong has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since it was listed in 2002
and was redesignated as an executive director of the Company
in 2005 and then further redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company in 2007. Mr. Wong has been the chief
financial officer and executive vice president of Lenovo Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), since
July 2007. He is also an independent non-executive director of
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited, which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of I.T Limited from 2004 to 2011, which
is also listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wong was an executive director and chief executive officer
of Roly International from 2005 to 2007. He was previously
an investment banker with over 16 years of experience in
investment banking business in Greater China. Mr. Wong is
a chartered accountant of the UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). He holds a Bachelor's degree of Science (with
Honours) in Management Sciences from The Victoria University
of Manchester, the UK.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang, aged 53, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
2002. Mr. Wang is the chief executive officer of 698 Capital
Limited, a private Asian investment firm. Mr. Wang is also a
board and audit committee member of NASDAQ listed Home
Inns & Hotels Management Inc., one of China's leading hotel
chains. Previously, Mr. Wang was a member of the board
and chief executive officer of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ
listed online entertainment and game provider. Mr. Wang was
also previously a co-founder and executive director of KGI
Asia Limited, an investment bank and securities brokerage.
Mr. Wang has also served on the board of directors of several
finance and technology companies in the region and was
previously a member of the board and audit committee chair
of Softbank Investment International (Strategic) Limited (now
known as China Renji Medical Group Limited), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law School
and practised corporate and securities law in Hong Kong and
New York. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of California at Los Angeles in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors,

Senior Management and Company Secretary
B2 SREEERARMEER

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WENT

Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS

Independent non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, aged 66, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2005. Mr. Tse is
a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, and the HKICPA. Mr. Tse is a past president and
the past chairman and a past member of the audit committee
of the HKICPA. He joined KPMG in 1976, became a partner in
1984 and retired in March 2003. Mr. Tse was a non-executive
chairman of KPMG's operations in the PRC and a member of
the KPMG China advisory board from 1997 to 2000. Mr. Tse is
currently an independent non-executive director of Wing Hang
Bank, Limited, CNOOC Limited, China Telecom Corporation
Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited,
all listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From 2004
to 2010, Mr. Tse was an independent non-executive director
of China Construction Bank Corporation, which shares are
also listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. In March
2013, Mr. Tse was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of China Construction Bank Corporation.
Mr. Tse is a member of the International Advisory Council of
the People's Municipal Government of Wuhan. Mr. Tse holds
a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, aged 67, has been
an independent non-executive director of the Company since
2008. He became the chief executive officer of Freemans
Grattan Holdings of Otto Group in 2008. After a successful
4 years, he retired at the end of 2012 and remains a non-
executive director of Freemans PLC and Grattan PLC. From
1994 to 2007, he was managing director of Otto International
Asia and was responsible for all of its sourcing offices and
trading companies in the Asia Pacific region. Prior to that,
he worked his way through different aspects of the garment
industry for 22 years in South Africa. Having been managing
director for the manufacturing subsidiary of a major retailer in
South Africa and a board member of such retailer for 4 years,
he joined a large American apparel manufacturer in Hong Kong
in 1992. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Garment Engineering
received from a college in Netherlands.

Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda, aged 46, is the company
secretary of the Company and Roly International. Ms. Cheung
joined a subsidiary of Roly International in 1997 as an
assistant company secretary. She has over 20 years of company
secretarial experience gained in listed companies. Ms. Cheung
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
the UK.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions ("Code Provisions") as
stated in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as the Corporate Governance Code
("Code") of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with
the Code to the extent that the Directors consider it is applicable to the
Company and practical.

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an effective
Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence policy, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company fully complied with the Code
Provisions in the CG Code, save for the deviation from Code Provision
A2.1.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
and the explanations on the deviation from the Code Provision are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All Directors
should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full
and timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board, the
powers and authorities reserved to the full Board include the following
but are not limited to:

1. matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder and/or a Director;

2. making decisions on whether or not to declare, recommend or pay
dividend;

3. approving (i) the publication of preliminary announcement of the
profits or losses in respect of annual results or interim results and
(i) the related financial statements and/or accounts;
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4., approving any proposed change in the capital structure, including
any redemption of its securities listed on the Stock Exchange;

5. approving any decision to change the general nature of the
business of the Company;

6. approving any discloseable transaction, major transaction, very
substantial acquisition and disposal or connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules;

7. matters specifically set out in the Listing Rules which require
approval at a full Board meeting; and

8. any regulations or resolutions or restrictions that may be imposed
upon the committees by the Board from time to time.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are more particularly discussed
below.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive officer and
senior management to discharge its responsibilities. Save for the
power reserved by the Board or other Board committees, the Executive
Committee currently comprising the chief executive officer and chief
financial officer is responsible for the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group.

Corporate governance functions

Pursuant to the terms of reference and modus operandi of the Board,
the Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out below or it may delegate the responsibility to a committee
or committees:

1. to develop and review the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
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5. to review the Group's compliance with the corporate governance
code and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company; and

6. to review and monitor the Group's process of disclosure, including
assessing and verifying the accuracy and materiality of price-
sensitive information and determine the form and content of any
required disclosure.

During the year under review, the Board adopted a new policy on
board diversity ("Board Diversity Policy") in order to comply with
Code Provision A.5.6 in the revised CG Code which took effect from 1
September 2013. In conformity to the revised CG Code and the Board
Diversity Policy, the Board also reviewed and amended the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee during the year under review.

Directors' and officers' liabilities insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers' liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the
Group has been arranged by the Company.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises six Directors in total, with two executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
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The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides membership information of these committees on which each
Board member serves.

ARAERRENEESTZES - TREHRSE
FeNEBHEEEZBETAEETMRBA -

Board Committee

EEZEg

Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Director Committee Committee Committee Committee
E=x BITZEE ENEZEY FHEEE REZE®
WANG Lu Yen THE M C
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF M
WONG Wai Ming E(EH
WANG Arthur Minshiang F ot M
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HZDT M
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS M
Notes: BfI5E -
C Chairman of the relevant Board committees C FHRESEZEENER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHREEZEENNE

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)) with
each other.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against appropriate
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

According to the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board on 30
August 2013, selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, industry and
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender,
age and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will be able to bring to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee is delegated to review this policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness to suit the needs of the Company
and will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and was of the opinion
that the Board is well balanced and diversified, and with the appropriate
structure, size and necessary skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives required for the business of the Group.

The Board's composition and the biographical details of the Directors are
set out in the paragraph headed "Composition" above and in the section
"Biographical Details of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” of this annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such
confirmation, the Company still considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Independent non-executive Director who has served for
more than nine years

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius has served as an independent non-executive
Director for more than nine years. To comply with Code Provision A.4.3
of the CG Code, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius will retire voluntarily at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius remains
independent notwithstanding the length of his service and believes that
his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business and his
accounting expertise and general business acumen continue to generate
significant contribution to the Board, the Company and the shareholders
as a whole. The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders
of the Company on or about 29 July 2014 will contain the biographical
information of Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and the detailed reasons behind
the Board's recommendation of the continuing appointment of Mr. TSE
Hau Yin, Aloysius as an independent non-executive Director.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for approving any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy based on the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee.

The Company's bye-laws ("Bye-laws") provide that all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Bye-laws also allow for removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company on or about 29 July 2014 will contain detailed information of
the Directors standing for re-election.

Directors' service agreements and letters of appointment
Each of Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, being an
executive Director, has entered into a service agreement with the
Company with an initial term of three years from May 2002 and
September 2010 respectively, and has continued thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than six
months' notice in writing.

Mr. WONG Wai Ming, a non-executive Director, has been appointed for a
term of two years under a letter of appointment from July 2007 and has
continued thereafter until terminated by either party by serving at least
one month's notice in writing.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Arthur Minshiang, Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius and Mr. Jakob
Jacobus Koert TULLENERS, has first been appointed for a term of two
years under a letter of appointment. Such term has been renewed for a
further two years upon expiry. The appointments may be terminated by
the independent non-executive Directors by serving not less than one
month's notice in writing.

Disclosure of information on Directors

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the emoluments as disclosed in other parts of this annual
report, there is no change in information of the Directors since the date
of the annual report for the year ended 30 April 2013 of the Company
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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Changes to the emoluments of the Directors

For the year under review, the Remuneration Committee having
considered the roles and responsibilities, performance and contributions
of the Directors approved certain changes to the emoluments of the
executive Directors. None of the Directors participated in the discussions
relating to his own remuneration matters.

Since the last published annual report, the changes made to the
emoluments of the Directors are summarised below:

1. WANG Lu Yen (executive Director, chairman, chief executive
officer, chairman of Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee, and member of Remuneration Committee)

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$225,000 for the year under review.

2. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (executive Director, chief financial
officer, and member of Executive Committee)

- With effect from 1 May 2014, the base salary under the
service agreement has been adjusted from HK$3,402,000 (or
US$437,275) to HK$3,487,200 (or US$448,226) per annum.

- The Remuneration Committee has approved a discretionary
bonus payment of US$120,000 for the year under review.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors at the Company's expenses
whenever necessary.

The Company provides reqular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group's business and the legislative
and regulatory environments in which the Group conducts its business
to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors' training. All Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training they received
during the year ended 30 April 2014 to the Company. Each Director
received at least eight hours of training in the form of attending
seminars, receiving online training or self-study of the publications
issued by the regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers
during the year ended 30 April 2014.
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Directors' attendance and time commitment

Regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals primarily for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies, policies and budgets of the Group.

During the year ended 30 April 2014, the Board met five times mainly for
considering and approving the share premium reduction and payment of
a distribution, the audited final results for the year ended 30 April 2013,
unaudited results for the three months ended 31 July 2013, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 October 2013, unaudited
results for the nine months ended 31 January 2014, budget of the Group
for the year ending 30 April 2015 and renewal of the terms of the letters
of appointment of independent non-executive Directors. At these board
meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group's business
updates and strategies.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, annual general meeting and special general
meeting during the year ended 30 April 2014 is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/EERY
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Special
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee general general
Name of Directors EEpg Meeting  Meeting  Meeting ~ Meeting  Meeting  meeting  meeting
EX2 LTZE2 ENZEE FMZEL RE2ZEE RREE REEH
= ] 23 = 23 L-F N N4
Executive Directors HTES
WANG Lu Yen THE 5/5 0/ *02 11 11 11 11
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE 5/5 0/0 2 1 1 11 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
WONG Wai Ming (W 45 NATER NATER NATER  NANER 01 0/1
Independent non-executive Directors B Y EHTES
WANG Arthur Minshiang FaHE 5/5 NJA N 202 11 11 0/1 o1
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius EIEZ] 55 NJA TNER 22 1 11 01 i
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS 5/5 NJA NiEF 22 NATER NANER 01 W
Number of meetings held SEMRITRY 5 0 2 1 1 1 1
Note: MIaE
* The Directors are not members of the committees at the relevant time but attended * ZEENERTIFZEZESTNE  BEEBLEEHS

the meetings by invitation.
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Apart from holding physical meetings, the Board and Board committees
also circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members
of the Board and Board committees except for matters where a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which the
Board has determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision
A.1.7 of the CG Code.

The Board having considered the attendance records and training
records of the Directors and the confirmation provided by each Director
is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.

Practices and conduct of meetings
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made available
to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to senior management and
company secretary whenever necessary.

The chief executive officer, chief financial officer (who heads a team
of professional staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function) and company secretary of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors for their
comments and records respectively, in both cases within a reasonable
time after each meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. WANG Lu Yen, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. Such practice deviates from Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

In view of Mr. WANG Lu Yen's extensive experience in the industry and
in-depth knowledge of the Group's operation and business, the Board
believes that Mr. Wang is instrumental in formulating and implementing
the Group's strategies. The Board expects that the Group will benefit
from a unified chairman and chief executive officer position that
provides clarity of leadership and allows efficient decision-making in
strategic matters as well as the Group's day-to-day business. However,
as the corporate needs of the Group may change from time to time,
the Board will review regularly the board composition and division of
responsibilities to ensure balance of power and corporate governance
practices appropriate for the size and structure of the Group's business.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
clearly defined and set out in writing, details of which are stated below.

The chairman's principal role is to provide leadership for the Board on
corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper proceedings of the
Board and encourage all Directors to have active contributions to the
Board's affairs.

Supported by the other executive Director and management, the chief
executive officer's principal role is to manage and operate the Group's
day-to-day business, including the implementation of major strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board committees

The Company currently have four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.

Terms of reference of all Board committees are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website at www.linmark.com.

I
e Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T

EIERITHRAR
ARRZERETREEENARDRTHEE «
% R B b 2R T RSP RIS A2 - %
XA ERRITRARNAGESR - TS
Fl— AFEFE -

ENTHREAEETETRELELR  XHA
SELEMEBRAREND EFQRETEE
EHRFIELATAEERBEER T ESMNE
A-EFERR/EFEBTREARNBHEE A
— BEIRMUBMMNRE TR - SREMEFHHDR
REAEEREEREARE  WAMAEE
AtmEes - A > ARAKENEEFTERE
THNE EFefERREEeERLBE
a7 UREREDTFERARERTERENA
SEEBORBELREMS IBIRE -

TRETRARSENEACHBRATEEER
#o > ARAFBHENTX -

ITRCERETCRAEESTSEITEERRER
g BREFSHREVENEFEEFE  LEE2
BESUHEFESHELREERR -

THRAREEMATEEREEENIFT =
ZRTEEMEEARENBEERY - BREETT
EESRMNE BRI EIE o

EEZEg
REBARFERNFENES - ARARER
MEZEE BRITEEE B
ZEERREEER -

FMEEEZEoMBEREESH NI REN &
ANRA TR www linmark.com - AfEEE o



Current structure of the Board

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee consists of all the executive Directors as
follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and operation
functions of the Group to the Executive Committee save to the extent
that certain powers and authorities are reserved to the full Board or the
other Board committees. The Executive Committee is also responsible for
reviewing or recommending to the Board the investment transactions
of the Group and has the power to approve transactions that would not
constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules,
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules or capital
market activities.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors
as follows:

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS
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None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company's existing external auditors.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Directors. The
Audit Committee also reviews and monitors the external auditors'
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process. The members meet regularly with the external auditors and
the Company's senior management for the review and supervision of
the Company's financial reporting and internal control procedures. The
Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity of the
financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual reports
and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, details of
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control and other matters have been
included in the employees' handbook since 1 April 2012.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
to:

(a) review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the chief financial officer
(who heads a team of professional staff responsible for the
accounting and financial reporting function) or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

(b)  review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees, terms of
engagement and independence, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors proposed by management; and

() review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

reporting system,

The Audit Committee also reviewed the terms and conditions of
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of the
Company which took place during the year under review.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 30 April 2014 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external
auditors on its independence and objectivity as required by the HKICPA.
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There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors during the
year under review.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (chairman of the committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
WANG Lu Yen

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company's policy
and structure for all the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company about
their recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Company adopted Code Provision B.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a whole
is responsible for determining the remuneration of non-executive
Directors whereas the Remuneration Committee has the authority to
approve the remuneration of the individual executive Directors and
senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries as well as share
options related matters.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting to determine the remuneration and bonus of the executive
Directors.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members, the majority of
which are independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

WANG Lu Yen (chairman of the committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate
strategy;

(b) identify individual suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship;

(c) assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors,
having regard to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

(d)  ensure that no independent non-executive Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in assessing his/her own independence;

(e) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particulars the chairman and the chief executive;

(f) ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company's business, and in that regard, the
Nomination Committee should assist the Board to formulate and
review a policy concerning diversity of Board members;

(9) do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its duties conferred on it by the Board from time to
time; and

(h)  conform to and abide by any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by the
Listing Rules or the applicable laws.

With effect from 30 August 2013, the Company amended the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee in order to conform to the
revised Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code and the Board Diversity
Policy.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to
review the independence of independent non-executive Directors, to
consider the renewal of the letters of appointment of independent non-
executive Directors, to review the dual role held by the chairman and
chief executive officer, and to evaluate the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Company secretary

Ms. CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda has been the company secretary since the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2002.
She is an employee of a fellow subsidiary of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs.

As the company secretary, Ms. Cheung supports the Board by ensuring
an unimpeded flow of information within the Board and that policies
and procedures formulated by the Board are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board through the chairman and chief executive officer
on governance matters and facilitates induction and professional
development of the Directors.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject
to the Board's approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the
company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief executive
officer on the Group's company secretarial and corporate governance
matters, all members of the Board have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
each financial year staggered according to the date of appointment.
Ms. Cheung confirmed that she has complied with the Listing Rules and
received more than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 30 April 2014.

Business objectives and strategies

The Company looks for improving the Group's long term financial
performance and avoids taking undue risks to make short term gains
at the expense of long term objectives. The current business strategy is
disclosed in the section "Prospects” of the "Management Discussion and
Analysis" of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining the system of internal controls
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the year ended
30 April 2014, the Board conducted an annual review of the Group's
internal control system, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board assessed the
effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews performed by
the Audit Committee and external auditors. The annual review also
considered the adequacy of resources, budget, training programmes,
qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting function.
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As delegated by the Board and Audit Committee, executive management
reviewed the design and implementation of systems of internal controls
based on annual assessment of the Group's risk profile. Key control
issues and recommendations were reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Management will continue to follow up actions agreed upon in response
to recommendations.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code ("Employees Written Guidelines") for
securities transactions by relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company
and its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines
by the relevant employees was noted by the Company throughout the
year ended 30 April 2014.

Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other publications and disclosures
of the Company required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2014.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors' Report" contained in this annual report.

Auditors’' remuneration

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30
April 2014 amounted to approximately US$326,000 and US$146,000
respectively. The non-audit services were mainly related to tax services.
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Shareholders' rights
The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
members (or shareholders) of the Company ("shareholders”) are set out
in, amongst other things, the Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act").

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or
at the registered office of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies
Act. Under bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called
can be sent to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company as set out in the Corporate Information section of this annual
report for the attention of the company secretary.

Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a
resolution relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the
Companies Act, on the written requisition of members representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the
expense of the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
the Company shall give shareholders notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a
relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws, shareholders are entitled to elect
any person to be a Director at the annual general meeting in accordance
with bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws or at any special general meeting by
following the requirement set out in bye-law 88 of the Bye-laws. Details
of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available
on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.
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Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code, the Company will
arrange for the notice to shareholders to be sent for annual general
meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be
sent at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors. Where
bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company shall explain
the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll
The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put
to vote at general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll
except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands.

Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent
to shareholders prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from shareholders on voting

by poll.

After each general meeting, the poll results will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the manner
prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders' communication policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, use annual general meetings or other general meetings
to communicate with them and encourage their participation. The
Company shall also make available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications and other corporate
publications on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board will regularly review this policy to ensure its effectiveness to
suit the needs of the Company and to comply with the relevant rules
and corporate governance code.

Conduct of general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings.
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The chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the Board committees
or in their absence, other members of the respective committees and the
external auditors are available to answer questions at the annual general
meetings.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings, share
transfer, registration and payment of dividend to the Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company. Other shareholders'
enquiries can be directed to the head office and principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the Corporate Information section
of this annual report for the attention of the chief financial officer and
the company secretary.

Details of the shareholders' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company's website at www.linmark.com.

Investor relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Besides, as to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.linmark.com, where information and
updates on the Company's business developments and operations, list of
directors and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms
of reference of the Board and its committees, procedures of nomination
of directors for election, Board Diversity Policy, shareholders' rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other
information are posted. Information on the Company's website will be
updated from time to time.

There was no change in the Company's constitutional documents during
the year ended 30 April 2014.

Hong Kong, 15 July 2014
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Report of the Directors
EEEWMEE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2014.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year under review by
business and geographical segments as well as information about major
customers is set out in Note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2014 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 54.

A distribution ("Distribution”) of 14.64 HK cents per ordinary share,
totalling approximately US$12,863,000, was approved by shareholders
at the special general meeting held on 13 June 2013 and paid to
shareholders on 28 June 2013.

An interim dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share, totalling
approximately US$879,000, was declared and paid to shareholders
during the year under review.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.21 HK cents
per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2014, totalling
approximately US$1,063,000. Subject to shareholders' approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the final dividend will be paid
in cash on or about 12 September 2014 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 5 September
2014.

Ultimate holding company

During the year under review, the Directors regard Roly International
as a controlling shareholder of the Company and Megastar Holdings
Limited ("Megastar") as the ultimate holding company of the Company.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an
executive Director.

As at 30 April 2014, Roly International, directly and indirectly, held
approximately 69.78% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year under review are set out in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Share capital
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year under review
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Reserves and distributable reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year under review are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 30 April 2014, distributable reserves of the Company consisted
of the aggregate of contributed surplus and retained earnings, which
amounted to US$12,882,000 (2013: US$14,223,000).

Bye-law 138 of the Bye-laws requires that no dividend shall be paid
or distribution be made out of contributed surplus if to do so would
render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or
the realisable value of its assets would thereby become less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

In accordance with Section 54 of the Companies Act, the Company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of its
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

() the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.

With effect from 14 June 2013, the amount standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company was reduced by US$12,800,000.
The credit arising from the share premium reduction was transferred to
the contributed surplus account of the Company. Such credit transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company was then applied to
pay the Distribution.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Share options and share option schemes

A share option scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
or rewards to eligible persons for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group. The Company terminated the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (“2011 Share
Option Scheme") pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to
2021, during which the Board or a committee thereof may grant options
to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in the Company. No option
has been granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme remain exercisable
according to the terms of the grants of the options.

Details of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2011 Share Option Scheme include:

(i) any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or

(iii)  any business partner, agent, consultant or representative of,
or any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to, or any supplier of goods or
services to, or any customer of, any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company.

2.  Maximum number of shares
The initial total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of approval of the 2011 Share Option Scheme (i.e. 68,306,927
shares, representing approximately 10% of the Company's issued
share capital as at the date of this annual report).
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)

2.

Maximum number of shares (continued)

Subject to the approval by the Company's shareholders, the
aggregate number of the Company's shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the Company's shares in issue from time to time. Options
granted to the independent non-executive Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates
in excess of 0.1% of the Company's shares in issue and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million resulting in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted to such person under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
of such option must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company's shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Company's shareholders in general
meeting.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. No
consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of an option
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option. Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the
date as the Board may determine and ending on such date as the
Board may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date
of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The exercise price is determined
by the Board, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price of the Company's shares on the date of offer of grant and
the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant.

Remaining life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme
Subject to the earlier termination of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules governing the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the 2011 Share Option Scheme will expire on 29
August 2021.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Share options and share option schemes (continued) B R R BB IR AT 8 ()

Movements of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company AAEBFEANBRBE -_TT -FERESIIRT
granted to the Directors and employees (Note ii) under the 2002 Share ~ ZE = R{EE (M) AIREARQFRG < BERE
Option Scheme during the year under review were as follows: BEBERNT :

Options granted by the Company
Number of underlying shares of the Company

FAFREZBRERBZ AL TRNEE

Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at as at price
1May2013  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2014 per share Date of grant Exercise period
(HK9)
R-Z-zf£ R-E-mE
LA-H MA=tH
HATE  ERE  BAF  BEE B&X HATE SROFE BHAH TSR
(&7)
Directors £
IVANG Lu Yen TKE 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.700 25/08/2009  25/082010-24/08/2015
INONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Note i) B4 (Miziv) 3,282,500 - - - (3,282,500 - 0830 24/08/2007  24/08/2008-23(08/2013
500,000 - (500000 - - - 0.700 25/08/2009  25/08/2010-24/08[2015
3,782,500 - (500000 - (3,282,500 -
INONG Wai Ming & 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0700 25/08/2009  25/08/2010-24/08/2015
IANG Arthur Minshiang THHE 312,500 - - - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009  25/08/2010-24/08/2015
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius HEfT 625,000 - - - (625000 - 0830 24/082007  24/08/2008-23/08/2013
Jakob Jacabus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert 312,500 - - - - 312,500 0.700 25/08/2009  25/08/2010-24/08/2015
TULLENERS TULLENERS
Continuous contract employees ~ HEAHES 9,759,000 - - - (9759,000) - 0830 2400812007 24/08/2008-23/08/2013
(Note i) (BEi)
1,408,500 - - - - 1,408,500 0.700 25/08/2009  25/08/2010-24/08/2015
11,167,500 - - - (9,759,000 1,408,500
Total A3t 17,200,000 - (500000 - (13,666,500 3,033,500
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Share options and share option schemes (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the outstanding options
were granted were as follows:

BRERERESTS @

Bt

U]

PERMARITEBRER L B S BHAEh s
BT ERAR - ARBRODZEHENT

Trading day immediately

Date of grant

before the date of grant

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant

BB EERHAMAZRS B SEFHAMAZSRETE
HK$
AT
24/08/2007 23/08/2007 0.860
25/08/2009 24/08/2009 0.670

Employees include employees of the Group and of the subsidiaries of Roly
International (other than the Directors) working under employment contracts with
the Group or subsidiaries of Roly International which are regarded as "continuous
contracts” for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong
Kong).

The Company has used the Black-Scholes Model for estimating the fair value of
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The Black-Scholes Model is
one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of an option which can
be exercised before the expiry of the option period. The assumptions used in the
calculation are:

(a) Risk-free interest rate - the yield of 4-year Exchange Fund Notes on the date
of grant
(b) Expected volatility of share price - annualised volatility for one year

immediately preceding the date of grant
(0 Expected life of share options - 3.5-4.5 years
(d) Expected dividend paid out rate - 40%

No amount was charged to in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 30
April 2014 (2013: approximately US$2,000).

No option was granted during the year under review/during the corresponding period
last year.

The calculation of the fair value of options using the Black-Scholes Model is based on
various assumptions and is only an estimate. It is possible that the financial benefit
accruing to the option holders may be substantially different from the value of
options calculated.

On 18 June 2013, Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis exercised his options to acquire 500,000
shares of the Company under the 2002 Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of
HK$0.70 per share. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on
which the options were exercised was HK$0.485.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

EEEBEREEAEERZHBER 2B QR ZE
RBEHN (RMBEBBEPETEREBEOITE - AR [FE
AR E) RERNAEERERER CHBAT TEZE
8 (BRI -

AABCHRABI R — FRAEXNGEHRIE-TZT =
BREEREBREZ ATE - AR - FRARA
REFTABRE R ERR A TITEBRELTFEZE
F-EERER - S ERRBZBRAT

() mERFIE - EiH A AmE RN LS (E S %
FE

)  BREZERE - ZRREAHI—F2FEL
pd
(c) FBARE 2 TRAT IR — 3.5 4.55F

(d) FEETIRBIR & — 400%

BHE-Z-NFNA=ZTALFEZBERITELHES
B (ZT—=F : #92,000%7T) °

RARIBEEFEA 4 R I MR A -

REMOR - SRR ERREZATEDRES
AREREE  WEBNG - BEESEAZENE
BHms g EHe At ERRE 2 BEAELREARER

RZE—=FXA+/\B BEFR4LCRE-TT=
FRERAERTEIIZTR0.70B T 2 TIE BT EERE - A
A% A500,0000 AN A AR © R B HEARAETTE A HART 2
A& AR U T (B &0.48575 7T ©
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Directors
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Mr. WANG Lu Yen and Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis, in accordance with
bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius, who has served the Company for more
than nine years as an independent non-executive Director, will retire
voluntarily at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election for the purpose of complying with
Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG Code.

Directors' service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EERAQAREMEBEB ZRG - M
ERORESPzER

Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 30 April 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors MRZZ—MFMA=+H  ARAZEFRITH
BENARAKEEMAMBEEE (EXREBE
PlEsEEFMBMEGY ((RERBEKRG )
EXVER) 2 B&fn ~ AHERD REFPHEBRALA
RARRIBEES MHE GO E3525FE 2 B M
ZERmRKE (R E) BEREETFAANE
RRBI R 2 #eam ROXBINT -

and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")
(Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the (a) RAATREMEBZIE RO 2R
Company and its associated corporations R#%E

Percentage

shareholding in

the same class

Company/Name of Number and class of securities as

associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity of securities at 30 April 2014
(Note 1)

R=ZB—F

mMA=+A

ERE R & 5

ADTE B EEzEE ESgE 54 HEHERER ZREBDL
(F3E1)

Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 620,000 0.09%
iN/NE]| Eaeds! EnEAA ordinary shares
R
(L)

Company WANG Lu Yen Interest of controlled 477,035,619 69.79%
¥iN/NE]! T 1A corporations ordinary shares
_ (Note 2) T iEk
RIRHAE 2 fEan (L

(Pff7E2)

Company WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Benefiﬁial owner 2,500,000 0.37%
/NG| "HEF BEHEAA ordinary shares
(L

Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 100,000 0.01%
PIN/NC] =EH EmEEA ordinary shares
(L

Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 260,000 0.04%
NG Fart BEmEAA ordinary shares
(L

Megastar WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 1 ordinary ghare 100%
(Note 2) T BEaEAA il
(FftaE2) (L

|
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)
(a) Interests and short positions in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (continued)

Notes:
(1 The letter "L" represents the Director's long position in the shares.

(2) As at 30 April 2014, (i) RGS Holdings Limited ("RGS"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Roly International, owned 431,220,000 shares of the Company,
representing approximately 63.08% of the issued share capital of the
Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 6.70% of the issued share capital of
the Company. By virtue of the relationship between Mr. WANG Lu Yen and
Roly International as stated in Note (2) to the paragraph headed “Interests
and short positions of substantial shareholders in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company” below, Mr. WANG Lu Yen was deemed, by virtue of
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in all the shares of the
Company in which Roly International and RGS were interested.

(b) Interests and short positions in the underlying shares

EENAQATAREEABEIE KRG - 8
AR RESFP S (@)

(a) RAQFAREMEBEE 2RO P 2

@mR

W -

(1)

(2)

KE (@)

(L s EER RN 2R -

RZE—WEFMA=+H (2BEEz2
E [t B X FIRGS Holdings Limited ([RGS)) # A
431,220,000l R A EIR D - (AR A BB BEITRAR
#763.08% : (i) & Bl B BX #E 545,815,619 N2
RIRG - AAARRR B HEITIRALET700 - BT
X [EZRERAR AN RBRERG P 2w
E#A] —BHEQME TRE LR HER
ZHENBEER - BIEES RS GG EXVED 2 1&
X BRELERRAEA 2 BB RRGSHTH
BZHBAREIRN 2 o

(b) RADFAREEEEZE ZHEERD T

of the Company and its associated corporations ZRERRKR
Number of underlying
Company/Name of shares comprised in
associated corporations Name of Directors Capacity the options
(Notes 1 and 2)
BREREZ
AT AEEEZERE BEEHR g4 HEARGDEE
(BtsE1 K% 2)
Company WANG Lu Yen Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
VN/NS) Fi%E8 EmlEEA
Company WONG Wai Ming Beneficial owner 500,000 (L)
VNN =EH EmEEA
Company WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
ZAN/NS) F EmlEA
Company Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS Beneficial owner 312,500 (L)
ZAN/NS) EmlAA
Notes: Bt 3T
(1) The letter "L" represents the Director's long position in the shares. (1) (L i ESERR MR 2 iFeE -
(2) Details of the above underlying shares are set out in the paragraph headed (2) FHERERGN 2HBEHR [EEEERGNES

"Directors' rights to acquire shares or debentures".
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Directors' interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (continued)

(c) Interests and short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 30 April 2014, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had interests or short positions in the debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures
Movements of the options granted by the Company to the Directors
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year under review
were set out in the paragraph headed "Share options and share option
schemes" above.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EERAQAREMEBEB ZRG - M
RO RESP2ES (@)

() RALQXAREMEB LB z2ESP2ER
kKA
RIZB-—MFMNA=+H ARAZEER
TR ER AR R REEREE 2 &5
REB AR AR RRIREE S M ERGIF
FFEZERMIERIRR - HIRE
SESTRIAME AN A LB R P2 R

A
=

EEREROHES ZEF
ARARABBEFEARRE -_TT _FBRE
ERTESF BB RESHH N L [IEEHELE
PetErtdl ) —B o

B EXFEBEEIN  RARBEFEREMNRRE -
ARBHREEMMZEBRLF - B R B AR M B
REGESET I AR HA R E R FEE AN
N KA LA A B 2 B (B 75 T BRI 2% -
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Report of the Directors

TESHES

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

As at 30 April 2014, the following shareholders (other than the Directors

and chief executive of the Company whose interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company are set out above)

had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREAQARGREBERMDF 2
BERKXE

n=

T-MFMNA=+H " TIRR (HREAR

B RERRG 2R RRREEHRN EX 2
ARBEERITHRAERIN) RARE 2B
HER NP EAACARRBREESF M E K
1% 3361EFE 2 B 2 mgAR ¢

Approximate
Number of percentage of

shares of the interests as at

Name of substantial shareholders Capacity Company held 30 April 2014
(Note 1)
R=Z—MF
BEARATE MA=+HZ
FERREE 514 BRAEE EEMAT DL
(BF&ET)
RGS Beneficial owner 431,220,000 (L) 63.08%
EmlEA A
Roly International Beneficial owner 45,815,619 (L) 6.70%
2 EER EmEBA
Interest of controlled 431,220,000 (L) 63.08%
corporation (Note 2)
SPEHEE 2 Em (MFE2)
Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.79%
corporations (Note 2)
REHNER 2w (i)
Megastar Interest of controlled 477,035,619 (L) 69.79%
corporations (Note 2)
SEGEE #Em (HEE2)
Notes: MisE
(1) The letter "L" represents the entity's long position in the shares. (1) [LI DiEBBRRNP TR -

As at 30 April 2014, (i) RGS, a wholly owned subsidiary of Roly International, owned

431,220,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately 63.08% of the issued
share capital of the Company; and (i) Roly International owned 45,815,619 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 6.70% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Roly International is wholly owned by Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited.
Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited is held by Megastar as to 94.52%. Megastar is wholly
owned by Mr. WANG Lu Yen. Mr. WANG Lu Yen, a Director, is also a director of
RGS, Roly International, Rl Holdings Bermuda Limited and Megastar. As such, Roly
International was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which
RGS was interested, and RI Holdings Bermuda Limited and Megastar were deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company in which RGS and Roly International were
interested by virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO.
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RIS+ (B AR R B BT IR AN 496.7000 o 2 B B BX E3RI

Holdings Bermuda LimitedZ & #4& ° Rl Holdings Bermuda
LimitedFiMegastarf¥ 5 94.5200# %5 © Megastar i T #k[E 5%
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B F REEEAIZEXVED 2 83X Rl Holdings Bermuda
Limited & Megastar# iR A ARCS & & B R FTF B 2 A
AR 2 A



Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the shares and underlying shares

of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2014, the Company had not been
notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Related party transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken
during the year under review are disclosed in Note 32 to the financial
statements. Save as disclosed below, these related party transactions
either (i) do not constitute connected or continuing connected
transactions or (ii) fall under the definition of a connected or continuing
connected transaction, but are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined under Rule 14A.06(7) of the Listing Rules) and the Company
constitute continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules
and are subject to the announcement, reporting and annual review
requirements but are exempt from the independent shareholders'
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions have been entered into and are ongoing for which relevant
announcements had been made by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited
On 12 April 2013, Linmark (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement") with Sky Fame Group Limited ("Sky Fame") whereby
Sky Fame agreed to lease to Linmark (HK) Limited Flat 85 on 9/F.
and Flat 85 on 10/F, Tower 15, Hong Kong Parkview and Carpark
Space Nos. 1026 and 1040 of Entrance 1 (Level 6), 88 Tai Tam
Reservoir Road, Hong Kong (“Premises”) on a fully-furnished basis
for a term of 24 months commencing on 1 May 2013, provided
that both Linmark (HK) Limited and Sky Fame have an option to
terminate the Tenancy Agreement by giving two months' notice to
the other party in writing. The monthly rent (exclusive of rates and
government rent) payable by Linmark (HK) Limited to Sky Fame
under the Tenancy Agreement was HK$200,000. The Premises
were used as the staff quarters of Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an executive
Director.

FERRALELQRTAROGREBERAH 2
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Report of the Directors

TS

Connected transactions (continued)

1.

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Linmark (HK) Limited (continued)

On 29 October 2013, Sky Fame gave a two-month written notice
to Linmark (HK) Limited to terminate the Tenancy Agreement with
effect from 29 December 2013. Further to the termination of
the Tenancy Agreement, Linmark (HK) Limited has leased another
premises as the staff quarters of Mr. Wang from a third party
which is independent of the Company and its connected persons.

The entire issued share capital of Sky Fame was owned as to 50%
by Mr. WANG Lu Yen, an executive Director, the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company and as to 50% by his
spouse during the term of the Tenancy Agreement. Accordingly,
Sky Fame was an associate of Mr. Wang and a connected person of
the Company during the term of the Tenancy Agreement.

Continuing connected transaction relating to
Tamarind International Limited

On 28 November 2011, Tamarind International Limited (“Tamarind")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Tamarind are collectively referred to as “Tamarind
Group")) entered into a master lease agreement (“Master Lease
Agreement”) with Wellbuild International Limited (“Wellbuild")
(for its own and on behalf of its subsidiaries from time to time
(together with Wellbuild are collectively referred to as “Wellbuild
Group")) whereby Wellbuild Group agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in Shanghai,
PRC ("Properties"”) with gross floor area of approximately 1,967
square metres by way of sub-letting arrangement for a term of
3 years commencing on 1 April 2012. The monthly rent (inclusive
of management fee) payable by Tamarind to Wellbuild under the
Master Lease Agreement is HK$330,000. The Properties are used by
Tamarind Group as its Shanghai office.

Wellbuild is (i) a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roly International;
and (i) a controlled corporation and an associate of Mr. WANG
Lu Yen who is an executive Director, the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company and a director of Wellbuild.
Accordingly, Wellbuild and its subsidiaries are regarded as
connected persons of the Company.
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Connected transactions (continued)

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
consider that these continuing connected transactions were conducted
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements governing them. The Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) are of the view that the terms of these
continuing connected transactions were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

All connected transactions were reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors at the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 11
July 2014. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the
aforesaid connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal commercial
terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain fact finding procedures
on the above continuing connected transactions on a sample basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information" and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules" issued by the HKICPA. The Board confirmed that
it had received a letter from the auditors of the Company confirming
that nothing has come to the auditors' attention that the continuing
connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Company if the transactions involve provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcements dated 28 November 2011 and 12
April 2013 respectively.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the transactions stated above. A copy of the auditors' letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
s

Directors' interests in contracts

Save as disclosed above and in Note 32 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

Major customers and vendors of the Group

During the year under review, the five largest customers of the Group
in aggregate accounted for approximately 67.2% of the turnover of the
Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately 33.4% of
the turnover of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 26.6% of the Group's total shipment volume placed by the
Group and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 7.2% of the
Group's total shipment value placed by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
50 of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in the
top five customers or vendors noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's securities during the year under review.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Financial summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 144 and 145.
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Charitable donation
During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately US$1,000.

Corporate governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance Report” on pages
17 to 35.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year under review.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Ernst
& Young as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of
the next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors.

On behalf of the Board

WANG Lu Yen
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 15 July 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B X BRI E S

Ernst & Young RAEETEEIEFR
22/F CITIC Tower EEBRRAZELR
1 Tim Mei Avenue RIERE2248

EY =

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
To the shareholders of Linmark Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Linmark Group
Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group")
set out on pages 54 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 30 April 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated

financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
www.ey.com

FEEE: +852 2846 9888
{HE: +852 2868 4432
Www.ey.com
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Auditors' responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30
April 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
15 July 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

AN =
N[ /g\-ﬁI\L

Year ended 30 April 2014
HE_Z-MFMA=1TRHILFE

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —F=F
Note US$'000 US$'000
B FEx FE7T
REVENUE &= 5 103,397 110,047
Cost of sales SHE A AR (76,427) (82,459)
Gross profit EF 26,970 27,588
Other income H A 5 1,353 1,078
General and administrative expenses —RERATE R X (23,329) (23,543)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary REN— XM B A7) 2 i 28 (138) -
Loss on deregistration of a branch BUEREM—FK o A a2 E1E - (193)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—REE QR ZEE (M) (1)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRBE AT R 6 4,855 4,929
Income tax (expense)/credit Fi5® (X)), #H% 9 (399) 403
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EKATEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREERT 10 4,456 5,332
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAREERERFEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EhEREF
OF THE COMPANY (expressed in US cent) (AZEALZ31) 1
Basic HAR 0.7 0.8
Diluted e 0.7 0.8

Details of the dividends and distribution to shareholders of the Company ~ AN R4 TR 2R E RARFRIER 2 2 IKFFE
are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements. OB R M EE12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

/\\/ == EEHQ

Year ended 30 April 2014
HE_Z-MFMA=THILFE

2014 2013
—E-ImF —B—=F
Us$'000 US$'000
TEx T
(Restated)
(& E7)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERR 4,456 5332
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HttZEHEA
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified HigEHnEEEs 2
subsequently to profit or loss: Hz2mlkA
Exchange differences: BEH =R
Translation of foreign operations MEBINERS 172 46
Reclassification adjustments B EAR
- loss on dissolution of a subsidiary - RE—RMTB AR Z BB 138 -
- loss on deregistration of a branch - BUBER—Ka A a2 EiE = 193
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified HEBHHBEEGZ
subsequently to profit or loss Hih ZHEEA 310 239
Other comprehensive (loss)/income not to be HETeENmEzEn
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: Hipzm (ER),/ WA :
Remeasurements from defined benefit plan ERBiE 8z EFatE (44) 18
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR EEHMEEEA 266 257
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEZEABALE 4,722 5,589
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR

As at 30 April 2014
R-_ZE—WFMNA=1H

30 April 30 April 1 May
2014 2013 2012
—E-QmEF —E-=F —T——F
MA=+H MA=+H FA—H
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
SV FET FET
Note (Restated) (Restated)
Bt zE (1255) (1255)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RE KRR 13 459 1,041 998
Goodwill FEES] 14 26,333 26,333 26,333
Available-for-sale financial asset AEEESREE 15 84 84 84
Investment in a joint venture R—REENAIZITE 17 10 11 12
Deferred tax assets FELEFIBEE 18 9 19 13
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 26,895 27,488 27,540
CURRENT ASSETS mEBEE
Trade receivables EWE SRR 19 6,221 5,456 5,367
Prepayments, deposits and BNRE - ZE R
other receivables H e B 20 2,422 3,728 3,120
Tax recoverable A ERRIE 566 418 212
Bank deposit with initial term of MiatF i ERa = E A
over three months ZIRITER - - 1,997
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB e EEEE 21 14,61 24,335 17,816
Total current assets B EELR 23,820 33,937 28,512
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERB SRR 22 5,682 5,526 5,997
Accruals and other payables i ERANEMENTIE 23 9,675 10,488 8,574
Tax payable JEfH 718 1,636 1,686 1,468
Total current liabilities nEaEEE 16,993 17,700 16,039
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETE 6,827 16,237 12,473
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 33,722 43,725 40,013
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Post-employment benefits 1B 8 RARER 24 1,005 979 1,014
Total non-current liability FREaEESE 1,005 979 1,014
NET ASSETS EEZE 32,717 42,746 38,999
EQuITY i
Issued capital BRI 25 13,671 13,661 13,661
Reserves 1 27(a) 19,046 29,085 25,338
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO RNREE BN
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREE 32,717 42,746 38,999

WANG Lu Yen E1%RE
Director %

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EE &

Director E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

/\\/ \

—H— N7
T / ~ n\Dm %j] ig

Year ended 30 April 2014

BE-T—

MEMA=+HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARERAER
Share Capital  Exchange
Issued Share option Special redemption fluctuation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve  earnings Total equity
B&fT Rty  BRE BB EARE  ERRD ®E i
B& A | e il e e BA it
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
i Txr  FEx  FTEr fEr T TEr TEr TER
At 1 May 2013 “Z-=FRA-H
As previously reported FRIZH 13,661 2,711 226 184 48 (438) 6,280 42,672
Impact of adoption of M’ql R et R E 195,

IAS 19 Amendments BiAz & 22 - - - - - - 74 74
As restated HE]] 13,661 22,11 226 184 48 (438) 6,354 42,746
Profit for the year EEEF = = - - - - 4,456 4,456
Other comprehensive income for the year:  FEEMEARA :

Exchange differences on translation of BRERNERZ

foreign operations ERz® = - - - - 172 - 172

Reclassification adjustment ENAEAE

- loss on dissolution of - RY—FMBAT
a subsidiary ZER - - - - - 138 = 138
Remeasurements from defined ERENHE
benefit plan LEREE - - - - = = (44) (44)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEPENALE = - - - - 310 4,412 4,722
Employees share option scheme BB BAE=T 2

- proceed from issue of shares - BIRmFE0E 2 10 35 - - - - - 45

- transfer to share premium - BEARNEE 26 - 12 (12) - - - - -
Share options lapsed during the year FRB KU Bk - - (145) - - = 145 =
Share premium reduction HRR DR E - (12,800) - - - - 12,800 -
Distribution Dk 12 - - - - - - (12863)  (12,863)
Final 2013 dividend paid BRZE-ZFRBRS 12 - - - - - - (1,054)  (1,054)
Interim 2014 dividend paid BRZZ-MmERHRE 12 - - - - - - (879) (879)
At 30 April 2014 RZB-MEMA=1H 13,671 9,958 69 184 48 (128) 8,915 32,717
Representing: i
Proposed 2014 final dividend BE-S-NERBRE 12 - - - - - - 1,063 1,063
Others Hith 13,671 9,958 69 184 48 (128) 7,852 31,654
At 30 April 2014 RZB-MEMA=1H 13,671 9,958 69 184 48 (128) 8,915 32,717

T HEREERAT T mEER e




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAEREPR

Year ended 30 April 2014
(E_T-MFENA=FTHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN ZPN
Share Capital  Exchange
Issued Share option Special  redemption  fluctuation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve’ reserve reserve earnings  Total equity

BET ki BRE Hhl  EAEE  ERRD & s

e i e Rt ] it B 2R

Note US§000  USS000  US§000  USS000  US$000  USBo00  USS000  US$000
e TRt TR TR TR TR TR TR TER

At 1 May 2012 RZZE-——F1A-H
As previously reported ERIZR 13,661 22,71 226 184 48 (677) 2,790 38,943
Impact of adoption of PRABIR e R E19%,

IAS 19 Amendments B Az 22 = = = = = = 56 56
As restated L] 13,661 22,711 226 184 48 (677) 2846 38999
Profit for the year EEEF = = = = = = 5,332 5332

Other comprehensive income for the year:  EEHM2EMA -
Exchange differences on translation of RERNERZ

foreign operations [EHES = = = = = 46 = 46
Reclassification adjustment ENNERE
- loss on deregistration of -BERMm—Z 528
a branch LEE - - - - - 193 - 193
Remeasurements from defined R E
benefit plan (restated) JEHHE (BEG) - - - - - - 18 18
Total comprehensive income for the year —~ FE2EM AL - - - - - 239 5,350 5,589
Equity-settled share option arrangements AR, ¥ 2 BB AR IEZ HE 26 - - 2 - - - - 2
Share options lapsed during the year FERNE KM B IRIE - - (2) - - - 2 -
Final 2012 dividend paid BRZE-—ZFREBRE - - - - - - (439) (439)
Interim 2013 dividend paid BENZZ—=FhEKRE 12 - - - - - - (1,409) (1,40)
At 30 April 2013 RZE-=FEA=1A 13,661 2,71 226 184 48 (438) 6,354 42,746
¢ Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of share capital ‘ FRREEEENRAR AR ETRAEERKRRF)EBIA
of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital RBBH A RKE 2 HERRIRAAERTE L =5

of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.

I
@ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= ATH A =
wr = fﬁium;ﬁ%
Year ended 30 April 2014
HE-ZT-NMFENA=1THIFE

2014 2013
—E-NmF —F—=
Note US$'000 US$'000
k3 TER Fx=x
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K&K ZHESRE
Profit before tax: R R A 4,855 4,929
Adjustments for: ek
Share of loss of a joint venture i —RaERal 2 EiE 1 1
Interest income FEWA 5 (7) (55)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment = Was 6 (M (2)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary A — RN B AR 2 EiE 6 138 =
Loss on deregistration of a branch BB M —RoO A RZEE 6 = 193
Depreciation e 6 756 758
Equity-settled share option expense VARt S2 1+ 2 S ik i 2 R 6 = 2
5,742 5,826
Increase in trade receivables JE U E 5 BR FRAE N (765) (89)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TENFIA -« He R EMmEK
deposits and other receivables R A (35 ) 1,306 (608)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERESEZEM CFd) 156 (471)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FEstE B R E M EA R IE
other payables CRA),/ $5hn (813) 1.914
Decrease in post-employment benefits & BRIREFIR (17) (17)
Cash generated from operations REEXBRBRE 5,609 6,555
Tax (paid)/refunded (BAF),/ REIFIE (587) 509
Net cash flows from operating activities RESEEPTIS I & R RE 5,022 7,064
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZBFESRERE
Interest received EHFHE 7 55
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB Y% - BE M&E (175) (801)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BRER&E
plant and equipment FR1S3/IE 1 2
Decrease in bank deposit with e FER s =1EA 2
initial term of over three months RITFFORD = 1,997
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEED (FTFE),/ A5
investing activities IH& 5 (167) 1,253
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

W T = fﬁi/}m%%

Year ended 30 April 2014
(E_ZE-MEHA=THILFE

2014 2013
—E2-—F —zT =
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB FEIFERESRE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT TS A 45 =
Dividends paid EfIRE (1,933) (1,844)
Distribution paid BN DI (12,863) =
Net cash flows used in financing activities B & /& BIFTFEIR & F 58 (14,751) (1.844)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND fﬁ,ﬁ&fﬂﬁg‘;ﬁlﬁﬁ
CASH EQUIVALENTS W), nEEE (9.896) 6,473
Cash and cash equivalents i%ﬂzfﬁi&fﬁﬁ
at beginning of year FHEIEH 24,335 17,816
Effect of foreign exchange MEREH) 2
rate changes, net oE - FE 172 46
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF YEAR HEEEEB 14,611 24,335
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND ReRASLEEEARZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS HEER D AT
Cash and bank balances IRe NLIRITEES 14,611 24,335
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Statement of Financial Position
B TS AR 3R

As at 30 April 2014
R-ZE-WFMNA=1H

2014 2013
—2-mF =
Note US$'000 Us$'000
= FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z&RE 16 36,560 50,843
Total non-current assets EREEERRE 36,560 50,843
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{SFIE « 24 M E M EUERIE 20 2 21
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EMFIER 21 248 134
Total current assets MBNEEBT 250 155
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Accruals and other payables JEETE B & EH b fE S 508 23 182 129
Total current liabilities BB EERE 182 129
NET CURRENT ASSETS nBEEFRE 68 26
NET ASSETS BEEFE 36,628 50,869
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITIRR 25 13,671 13,661
Reserves & 27(b) 22,957 37,208
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 36,628 50,869
WANG Lu Yen T 3% WONG Hing Lin, Dennis E&EF
Director £ Director £
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B TSR M AT

30 April 2014
—E-MFENA=1H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Linmark Group Limited ("Company") is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (together with the Company are
collectively referred to as the "Group") are principally engaged in
the sales of merchandise and the provision of procurement and
value-added services.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January 2002 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange") since 10 May
2002. In the opinion of the Directors, the holding company of the
Company is Roly International Holdings Ltd., which is incorporated
in Bermuda, and the ultimate holding company is Megastar
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
[slands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
(which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), and
International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for an available-for-sale
financial asset, which has been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in United States dollars ("US$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1
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Al (RBREFMKL) EREERAR A
Megastar Holdings Limited (7258 4 @ = &f
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
30 April 2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributable to the owners of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All inter-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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30 April 2014
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

I[FRS 7 Amendments

[FRS 10
[FRS 11
IFRS 12

[FRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

[FRS 13
IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 28 (Revised)

IAS 36 Amendments

[FRIC 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards - Government
Loans

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

Amendments to IAS 19

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to |AS 36 Impairment
of Assets - Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in May 2012
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Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of IAS
1 Amendments and IAS 19 Amendments, the adoption of the new
and revised standards, interpretations and amendments has had
no significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items presented in
other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time are presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified. The Group's
presentation of other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly.

IAS 19 Amendments change the accounting for defined benefit
plans. The revised standard removes the choice to defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. All actuarial gains
and losses are required to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. The interest cost and expected return on
plan assets used in the previous version of IAS 19 are replaced
with a net interest amount under IAS 19 Amendments, which is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset at the start of each annual reporting period.
Prior to the adoption of IAS 19 Amendments, the Group elected
to recognise actuarial gains or losses as income or expense over
the expected average remaining service periods of the employees
participating in the defined benefit plan when the net cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for the plan at the end of
the previous period exceeded 10% of the higher of the present
value of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets at that date. Upon the adoption of IAS 19 Amendments, all
actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income immediately. As a result, all deferred actuarial gains and
losses as at 1 May 2012 and 30 April 2013 were recognised in
other comprehensive income and the actuarial gains and losses
recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended
30 April 2013 were adjusted to other comprehensive income. In
addition, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets
recorded for the year ended 30 April 2013 were replaced by a net
interest amount.

Furthermore, upon the adoption of IAS 19 Amendments, all past
service costs are recognised at the earlier of when an amendment/
curtailment occurs and when the related restructuring or
termination costs are recognised. As a result, unvested past service
costs can no longer be deferred and recognised over the future
vesting period. The balance of unrecognised service costs as at
1 May 2012 was charged to retained profits as at 1 May 2012
and the amortisation of past service costs for the year ended 30
April 2013 has been adjusted. IAS 19 Amendments also requires
more extensive disclosures which are included in Note 24 to the
financial statements.

2.2

EHBREHREE &)

Bt ZRIE 1 REFTASERE MR E K
ARWIEB Z0# - BRABHOIE (RE
MER) RiERZABEXTEENNRZ
BHEFEDRZY - AREE B EREF
MHEBERPEMEMBPAZZS -

Ra et 2 A 1957 (8 5] AN ¥ F 58 48 A&t
EM 2 FTRIEELB - ZEIEFTERIER
HECHERBERSREEBRERE - 18
M Yes & 518 78 B BF 7E E 4t 2 T A AP
R o RIBHE T ERFE195REBFTA -
& 5 2% Rl 551955 5% Bl Al 4N BT A3 A &1 21
B EF BB A KT8 H 0 3R E LA ) S 0F 58
R FEFRBEDAARRERFSEERS
HHEARRENEERMNBEXREEFEE
T8 - EHEMBEIR S ERIE195 15 5]
NAT ERAEBEAREE 2 RETRE
RIBE W R REEFEBRBE B THEER
EARERFEEEATE (URSER
H) 21008 - REBERIEZETRERESHETER
BAIET 8 2 TEHA 39 Fl 6r B 75 BA T M A5 45
ek EIRER AR AT o FE
Bart R E195% 8 A% FTERENK
mMEEREEMEERAFER -
i RZE——FRA—BR_ZE—=F
WA=THZABELEREE W REBER
EMmzEBRAFER  MEBEE=_2—=
WMA=ZTHIEEEERRABRZBER
mMEEEAREEMEERA o N
HE-_Z—="FNA=1THILFEEHRSEZ
FEIEENSEBARBEHREHKE A EF
FHELA o

b AN+ BR 49 BB = 5F B 195k 18 5] A
% FTEBERBEAMER  HRE &
BREEAEHEIRIENAR (LUREEA
£) R o At - REBBERBKATHE
RAKEBHENECRER - R —
ZFRA—BNARBERREERBEKRE T
AZZE——FRHA—BHRBAEN  MmE
E_T—-FNA=ZTHIFENBER
BERBHEOEHAE BB 20)519
FEIANEEERERBZHREE - W
RISz aE24 ©

|
MEEBBREAF —T-NFFR @
T



Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

2.2

EHBEREHREE &)

statement of cash flows and insignificant effect on earnings per
share.

Due to the adoption of IAS 19 Amendments, a statement of
financial position as at 1 May 2012 has been presented.
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The effects of the above change are summarised below: Lt EE) o R AT
2014 2013
—2-mF —F—=
US$'000 Us$'000
SFEIw FE7T
Consolidated statement of e 2 E W a7
comprehensive income
(Decrease)fincrease in actuarial gain on FEREBAE T2 BE WS
defined benefit obligations and (decrease)/ O A),/EmnkE M2
increase in other comprehensive income WA Crd>) /180 (44) 18
30 April 30 April 1 May
2014 2013 2012
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FEx FET FET
Consolidated statement of F o=l
financial position
Decrease in post-employment 1B 8 RIREF &
benefits and total BB ERTER D
non-current liabilities 30 74 56
Increase in retained earnings 1R BB B 3L 30 74 56
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

IFRS 9

IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and
|AS 39 Amendments

[FRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

[FRS 11 Amendments

IFRS 14
IFRS 15
IAS 16 and
|AS 38 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments

IAS 32 Amendments

IAS 39 Amendments

IFRIC 21

Annual Improvements

Financial Instruments®

Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
IFRS 7 and IAS 39°

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised)
Investment Entities'

Amendments to IFRS 11
Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Regqulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipmentand IAS 38
Intangible Assets®

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits -
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions®

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement - Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Levies'

Amendments to a number of [FRSs issued
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 EEMERRERZBEBRIHBRE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) 28 (&)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact Z’SE B 1E 571 bt F 37 5] R S5 5T B R A 75
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the MEEAREREARZZE - BEBA
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to Bl NEBRBLER REETBEER
have a significant impact on the Group's results of the operations M mEEAN T RAIGEH ARG R 282 %
and financial position. PRI ERE -
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESBEHE
POLICIES
Subsidiaries ME 2R
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or MEBARERARREEIEEZEFNE
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when B (BEEREER) - MASEFEBRSH

the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control, is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Joint venture (continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investment in the joint venture, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint venture is included
as part of the Group's investment in joint venture.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 30 April. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3

based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than deferred
tax assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

AFEFTE (@

AP ERMBRERTEABRBEZRAERE
RAaf HERYHEATEEREMSE
BECREERARBRTITAATFHEER

P

F—E - RAFEEXRBERAED
152 WE (REHE) 78

£-E - REAEERDGHE (HAFER
EMEBEAZKEEH A
BEERIEERTEREE)

FZE - RAERDFE (HAFER
EMEBEAZKEERHA
ER TR ERSE)

BREBERUEEERWBRRERZEE
RAE AEERSERSHPREHFED
B(ERYFAEATEERMEBEAZR
EBE#AZE) BTESETRERZHE
8 -

FERMEEZRE
HMEEFERETFRIALETFERE
AR (REECHBEE SREERBE
5N - B IRE E 2 A U B SRR AE
it BEZAWOBBEZEESNRSES
Bz EREEREAFEMNBRIEERK
ARER R CENE  UKEEER
BREE  BRIFZKAREEELEZREARA
TRRBBYINEMEEXEEHRRIME
EZBREBRA - ERBRT - Al 4o EEE
NZHEEMB RS ELENERE -

BEIREEREEAKWEZEE  BE
BT TUARER - REHE A B EER
B ARRBESRERARAERRTEE
BE - URRRSEEIREEMSFER
ZEEEZRFERR - BERBBSNER
EHRIME R R -

I
e Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person,

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years or the

lease terms
Furniture and equipment 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include an available-for-sale financial
asset, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and deposits
and other receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in financial costs
for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains and losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (o) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets, if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred assets to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant”
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement
of profit or loss - is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

ERMEERE (8)
A BHH AR 2 BB E ()
BEZREERBEREEREEERRLD %

HEEZRESHE MERSBERBRR
R MBWARBERER ZFREET
Rt LERFEREBEFHARAKRE
MEETRIRRA R IA RERHM KM
8o BRI RIAL A A LU BB - E R
JE SR IR i R T R AR R 2 B M PR AR 3

R ER R - EREBRERRELER
FBREEFZREBRSBEMIR I 2F
- RISE 56 78 B 48 1 AR DA 38 0 lRE > S8 Al
ERZRERERE - B RMEZRERR
Higipm - QMBS R ABER ©

HREETHRE
HRABLESRKE  ARERSTRS
HARFEEEAREIERBRRIEARESL
—HEBRERIRE °

H—RAHEEEEMEELIRNE - X
AAE (FORR A A S R R H) BERTT
NRPEZEZBRATERERPRERZE
MREBEZSR  StEME2EEATP
BHRIHEBERAMER o

AR E W ER L ER R - BIREE
BEEEZEREZ A TFEABERRS
BREERERAE - [KIEE] ZRHEENE
B2 e A VRS G - T (R ] RIARER
R EER AR A 2 B B i AT 4 o fid
BRERE - A RFEE GREBRARESE
FRAFEZEBRZARELAERGER
AR 2 EFRER R E) BitEMb2m
WARBER  YRBRRAER - BER
AMEEZRATAZBERBETITER
BEREE - WHEQFERBERIE M
MOEEEREMEEBATHER -

I
@ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sales of merchandise, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  commission income, when the underlying goods procured by
the Group are shipped;

() from the rendering of services, reimbursement income
from customers, handling fee income and inspection and
laboratory testing income, when the services are rendered;
and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated
equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
(i) Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory

Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees' basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute 15% to 20%
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(i

Pension schemes (continued)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan,
which requires contributions to be made to a separately

administered fund, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the scheme. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined separately
using the projected unit credit valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan
assets (excluding net interest), are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligations under "administrative expenses" in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements;

o net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken
as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating
the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an office made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.

Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a

separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section of

the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FEEFEEREHE

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
venture are currencies other than the United States dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into United
States dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 30 April 2014 was US$26,333,000
(2013: US$26,333,000). More details are given in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based on the
credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current
market condition which requires the use of judgements and
estimates. When the expectation on the recoverability of trade
and other receivables is different from the original estimates,
such difference will impact the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment provisions in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. Management assesses the provision
at the end of each reporting period. The carrying amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables as at 30 April 2014 were
US$6,221,000 (2013: US$5,456,000) and US$1,301,000 (2013:
US$1,179,000), respectively. More details are given in Notes 19
and 20 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact on the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination is made. The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets as at 30 April 2014 was
US$9,000 (2013: US$19,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried
forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely than
not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the
future performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of
other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all
of the deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and related financial
models and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be available within
the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, the asset balance will be reduced and charged to the
statement of profit or loss.

FERFHEFT @

At 2 TREM (#)

FT 3/ KB IH
AEBAMMNZEREERZTER - B
ErRBEEGERELTNEBHRE 2R
BEEREZHE - ERAEEKBERTE
ZERX G RAEFR IS BB TR
ETRRHE - MZSTEZ2RERBEE
RHRFYLBSETIR EHEEHT
HEEME T M ATE R &R T R 8
H- RN -_ZE—MEMA=1+H " EEHEA
BE 2 REEA9000ET (ZE—=4:
19,0003 7T) °

EEFAEERER SRR ZHARES
BEE  EARK (ERXAEER) 87
BE (SN HIZRE AR BEE) IR 2 RIRJE
ARBE M A AR R WE B 2 HIARE -
BATESNEAHEEREERBEERTE
FREBIRBEBARKKRIR 2 H - 2
i ARBERMET G2 - KEBES

AFRNZEBR  EHBOIPABELTR
HEEB A REREWMER - PIERRE
B2 8 - BLISRT BISR RS R FT AR A
BRI - BLEHIAEE ENBEMB
BRCEREERAERSRSHRT UR
A ERRIORERAEFT RO ZERE -
HERDABEAB ARG - RS
BREBRSAKDE  BESHSSH
DI FEIE IR PR, -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment
that should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. At
30 April 2014, no impairment losses have been recognised for
the available-for-sale financial asset (2013: Nil). The carrying
amount of the available-for-sale financial asset was approximately
US$84,000 (2013: US$84,000). More details are given in Note 15
to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) sales of merchandise including garments, fashion
accessories, hardgoods, consumer electronic products and
labels; and

(b)  provision of services including procurement and value-added
services relating to the procurement agency business.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except
that interest income, loss on dissolution of a subsidiary, loss on
deregistration of a branch, share of loss of a joint venture as well
as corporate and other unallocated expense are excluded from
such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

FESHMEE @

B2 TREM (@)
—EHAHH E B EETRE
AEEBETEESEAAHTLE IR
BaEREAFLEZS - MAFERKD
EIEMWE/J&M”EHHEM L‘AFZF_F‘EE
HAREaRERRE R_ZE—WFNUA
=+8": Tﬁmﬁﬁﬁ‘fﬁ%ﬁj%imﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁw)&
EBEEE(ZZE—=F: &) A##HESH
& E 7 BRME{E 484,000k (ZE— =4 :
84,0003 JT) ° A B 5F 15 8 A B 15 R R fY 7
15 @
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REFSWEFR @)
Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
EmHE BHRE a5t
Year ended 30 April 2014 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
BEZE-EZ—NWENA=1+HILEE FEx FEx FEx
Segment revenue: oEWE :
Revenue from external customers KEINARE 2 Wz 86,811 16,586 103,397
Segment results DEEE 2,266 3,211 5,477
Interest income FEHA 7
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary fRE — XM B AT 2 g (138)
Share of loss of a joint venture Bii—X&a& A R ZEE (1)
Corporate and other unallocated R EH AR D
expenses X (490)
Profit before tax Rk A5 BTS2 ) 4,855
Income tax expense PSR xX (399)
Profit for the year FE R F 4,456
Other segment information: HittpEEHR
Depreciation e 300 456 756
Capital expenditures BEARF 100 75 175
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment  JEWE 5 BRE
of trade receivables CRERE ), BE (15) 42 27
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4, REFWER @)

Sales of Provision of
merchandise services Total
7 H IR AR =X
Year ended 30 April 2013 us$'o00 US$'000 US$'000
HE_ZT—=—FNA=+HLFE FXE7T FE7T FET
Segment revenue: EWE :
Revenue from external customers R BEINAR P 2 Uzs 93,003 17,044 110,047
Segment results DREE 1,775 3,768 5,543
Interest income FE A 55
Loss on deregistration of BB —Ro AR Z
a branch E5E (193)
Share of loss of a joint venture BlE—REE QAR ZEE (1)
Corporate and other unallocated R H AR D
expenses X (475)
Profit before tax B 5 B A1 4,929
Income tax credit Frigfi i & 403
Profit for the year FE 5 F 5,332
Other segment information: HttpEEHR :
Depreciation e 263 495 758
Capital expenditures BEARRZ 261 540 801
Impairment of trade receivables FEUE 5 BR FRE 2 17 19
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBETHER @
Geographical information 35 & R

(a) Revenue from external customers @) REINARFR ZW=
2014 2013
—E—{OF —_F—=
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Australia BN 36,823 35,962
Africa FEM 23,201 23,217
Europe BN 18,892 27,833
North America JE=M 16,874 15,482
Hong Kong B 872 1,002
Others Hih 6,735 6,551
103,397 110,047

The revenue information above is based on the locations of

P mERDREEFPAE 2

the customers. Al o
(b)  Non-current assets b) FERBEE
2014 2013
—E—{OF —F—=

USs$'000 US$'000
FEx S
Hong Kong BB 26,634 27,188
Others Hib 168 197
26,802 27,385

LA RBEEERIRIZEEME
W2y Y AEE-—AAHEESR
BENMELERBEE

The non-current assets information above is based on
the locations of assets and excludes an available-for-sale
financial asset and deferred tax assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBETEER @

Information about major customers EBREXEEFZER

Revenue from major customers, each of them amounted to 10% or REXERF (BEZERFPHASERE
10003 A £ ) 2 WaE 5T ¢

more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

Operating segment 2014 2013
BEDR —EF-mF —F—=
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Customer A Sales of merchandise 34,578 32,585
EPA B s s
Customer B Sales of merchandise 23,201 23,215
=FB [EEREk=
57,779 55,800
REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5. WaRkEAMUKA

AEBEZWSENMAANEEERE HEES
HEmBEERE SR 2 BHRFE
MEWRARIRERSE ZEIE -

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; commission income and the value of services
rendered.

AREE 2 Was REMBAZ AT

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as follows:

2014 2013
—E—-mF —T—=fF
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue g

Sales of merchandise 78 on 85 5 86,811 93,003
Commission income Ba U A 16,579 17,034
Rendering of services RHRS 7 10
103,397 110,047

Other income Haug A
Bank interest income FRITH B HA 7 55
Reimbursement income from customers TEHEZEEMEMIA 22 25
Handling fee income FEBRA 359 300
Inspecting and laboratory test income e & B B = B S A 353 380
Others Hih 612 318
1,353 1,078
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. BRBLADER

7R ER B 2 BR B Al A T

MEr /(GEA) K

(crediting): TRIF :
2014 2013
—E-nmF —T—=
Note US$'000 us$'o00
Bt ek FEx FET
Cost of inventories sold EERFEZKAR 76,160 82,148
Cost of services provided B R AR 2 AR 267 M
Depreciation e 13 756 758
Minimum lease payments under KEHET
operating leases: HERSTK -
Furniture and equipment N & 83 93
Office premises and staff quarters MAEBURETIES 1,509 1,372
1,592 1,465
Auditors' remuneration* Z RN~
Audit services Bz 335 298
Non-audit services IEEZ TS 156 62
491 360
Employee benefit expense EERAFHX
(including Directors’ (BIEEEH
remuneration - Note 7): - PfiEE7) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A A AN =3z 14,056 13,883
Staff welfare and benefits 8 Tad kaut 1,637 1,633
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 32 1+ 2 BE AR e B R = 2
Pension scheme contributions” BIREFHEIHEC
- defined contribution scheme - EEEMHIGTE 480 430
- defined benefit plans - EFEEAIETE 23 49
16,096 15,997
Foreign exchange differences, net & H =5 %% 214 340
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R FUR A 19 27 19
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment Rt 2 Was (M) (2)
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R — R B AR 2 EE 28 138 =
Loss on deregistration of a branch BB —RH5 AR 2 EiE - 193

* Of the above audit and non-audit services fees, US$326,000 (2013: *
US$289,000) and US$146,000 (2013: US$52,000) respectively are payable to

the Company's auditors.

At 30 April 2014, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2013: Nil).

£ Eit B MIEEZRBERS - 9575326000
E5T (ZZF— =% : 289,000 7T) }146,000% 7T
— T — =4 : 52000k 70) FEFT AR A ZEK
Bl o

R-ZF-—MENA=+H AKREIEERZ
BRUCR RS FTEHRAEHARRBR (22 —=
FE)
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEHM

Directors' remuneration for the vyear, disclosed pursuant to the AREEBRELEMRAURESRQIEHE
Listing Rules and Section 4 of Cap. 622G of the Hong Kong 62CEFAGFATHEZESFHMAOT ¢

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2014 2013
—E—MEF —=—=
US$'000 Us$'000
Group KEH FEx FET
Fees e 173 173
Other emoluments: Hithii & :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZAREYHE 1,311 1,294
Performance related bonus FIREMETEAT 345 683
Equity-settled share option expense VAR HE S 1+ 2 g AR i B = 1
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEI K 72 70
1,728 2,048
Total st 1,901 2,221
Certain Directors were granted share options in respect of their ETEZERKRERAEEFTIRME Z RIE
services to the Group under the share option scheme of the BERAGIEREGTSIET  BRE &
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 26 to —PHBHR M B RRI 26 - ZEBR
the financial statements. The fair value of such options which BZAFEDIRIELBHER  YERE
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the BHANEERERARER Mt ARFEEES
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the BHRERZESHENDEER EX 2 E S5
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is WENA -

included in the above Directors' remuneration disclosures.
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 7. EEFM

The emoluments of each Director are set out below:

BRESZHMEHEIIWMT ¢

Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances  Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonus expense contributions remuneration
BRERH
FEORE  RESHN  ZBRE BAeE
e REWAE 4 R 3% E)
BE-E-mE Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'ooo
Year ended 30 April 2014 MA=THLEE ST T£R T£R S TEn TR
Executive Directors: HTEZE !
WWANG Lu Yen THE - 874 225 - 28 1,127
INONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE - 437 120 - 44 601
Non-executive Director: FHTES !
WONG Wai Ming =EH 37 - - - - 37
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
WANG Arthur Minshiang T 44 - - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius AT 55 - - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacobus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 37 - - - - 37
173 1,311 345 - 72 1,901
Hz-3-=F
Year ended 30 April 2013 BA=THILEE
Executive Directors: HiTEE:
WANG Lu Yen THE - 878 455 1 28 1,362
INONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEE - 416 228 - 4 686
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
INONG Wai Ming BREH 37 - - - - 37
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
WANG Arthur Minshiang TaHE 44 - - - - 44
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius EiED] 55 - - - - 55
Jakob Jacobus Koert Jakob Jacabus Koert
TULLENERS TULLENERS 37 - - - - 37
173 1,294 683 1 70 222
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

During the year ended 30 April 2014, no emolument was paid to
or receivable by any of the Directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office as
a director of any member of the Group or of any other office in
connection with management of the Group (2013: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2013: two) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 7 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining three (2013: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as

EEFM =
FRNPEEENELREREEAH S
ZH(ZE—=F: |\) -

RBEEZE-_ZT-HNFOA=+THILFE ¥
BERERAEEFHREMNMESELSEMNE
KR MMBEAREEE 2 2R - HERAEKHE
EAKERARZEEREARASEEEE
ZAERE MR B E (T — =%
')

AVRESHFMES
FALUESHFHEEREML (ZT—=
F M) BEF - EHMAFBEN EXE
7o FR BB (ZFT—=F: ={1)
FARREFTHITRARZ RS FHMESR
ZFHHEBLT

follows:

2014 2013
—E—-mEF —F—=

US$'000 US$'000
Group KEE Fxx TF=ET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBLREDF 677 691
Performance related bonuses FIRHETEAL 119 13
Equity-settled share option expense LARE RS B S2 1+ 2 BB AR i & R = 1
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 10 13
806 818
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 8.
The number of non-director and non chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands
presented in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$") is as follows:

EfNERSHMESR ®)
BT EE S RIFTTHAEES B
TTEFZHMBIATSHER AT :

Number of employees

EEAZ
2014 2013
—E2-NF —_=—=
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T 21,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$128,535 to US$192,801) (= 1128,5355 T
%192,801%7T) 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to US$257,069) (FZ1192,8025 7T
%957,069%7T) - [
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to US$385,604) (=R 257,070% T
£385,60437T ) 2 2
3 3

During the year ended 30 April 2014, no emolument was paid
to or received by any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Group (2013: Nil).

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

BE _T-NFOA=1TRHILFE  #E
1) (] o 8% = 35 B B ST Skl iR F UK
HREMMESERMBERNMBERNEERE
BE - MMERERASEEREENBT
ZBEBHEE (T —=F  |E) -

FEHimx (ER)
EBFEBRLDBEFARBBEE Z (AT
JE 2B B % A 3% 16.5% (—ZZ — =4F : 16.5%)
IR EEAE o BB AIMNBIE 2 ERER
AR IBRBE A S B L BT R AR
ZBRITREGTE o

2014 2013
—E—mF —F—=

US$'000 US$'000

Group KEE F=xx TFET
Current B EH

- Hong Kong - BB 378 211

- Qutside Hong Kong - BB LAIMB R 84 86

QOverprovision in prior years BEFEBEBEEE (73) (794)

Deferred (Note 18) JEIE (PI5E18) 10 94

Total tax expense/(credit) for the year NEERBRY (KE) 25 399 (403)

I
@ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T



INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense/
(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

8w, (Ex) @

BRAREARA 7&%ﬁy§&ﬁf%"ﬁﬁﬁ&
RAHERBEEHR R ERNBR T AT R F 2
RIS MR ERRETE2HBREY
(B5) 2HERMAT :

2014 2013
—E-NmF —E—=
US$'000 USs$'000
Group REH FEx FEx
Profit before tax R %% A A1 4,855 4,929
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% £ 16.500)EE M EGTE 2 FH1E
(2013: 16.5%) —E—=4F: 801 813
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BE BN EAFL IE
previous periods 2 (73) (794)
Effect of different rates for companies E(\, Lt B] A M 5 AT & ZE FS HY
operating in other jurisdictions NEERTRIRE 22 203 99
Income not subject to tax BARTUA (2.689) (6,493)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR IR 2 2,170 5,833
Tax losses utilised from previous periods )BT B 2 BB E R (168) (1)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BiIAEE 49 10
Others EH A 106 30
Tax expense/(credit) for the year REEFHBERS (EH) 399 (403)

As of the date of this annual report, the Group received protective
assessments amounting to approximately HK$135,000,000
(equivalent to US$17,308,000) from the IRD in respect of queries
on the modus operandi of the Group and the chargeability of the
profits for the years of assessment from 2003/2004 to 2007/2008.

In response to enquiries from the IRD with the assistance of the
independent tax advisor, certain relevant information has been
furnished to the IRD for review and objections have been lodged
by the Group against the protective assessments. In addition, Tax
Reserve Certificates amounting to HK$5,250,000 (equivalent to
US$673,000) (2013: HK$4,400,000 (equivalent to US$564,000))
have been purchased by two subsidiaries of the Company in
pursuit of the holdover of tax demanded under the protective
assessments for these years.

The tax case is still at an information exchange stage. Despite the
uncertainty about its outcome, the Group maintains the view that
sufficient tax provision has been made in the financial statements.

RAFERAE  AEEEREGEAEER
—FEE= i%@g T S —TF
NFERMFEEERN Mg 2 BREF 2
B BEBLBRE MR 4135,000,000
67T (FBEM17,308,000E7T) ©

BB ZEW  AEBEB ISR
ZHBT ERMBERERSE THBEER
AR - EFREETRIRLRE -
[ N /N T L = /NI Tl v S o8
ZEFEREEABRAEIF 2BRK
% B (& {85,250,00078 7T (#8 & 52673,000%
7C) (==& — = 4 : 4,400,000/ 7T (#H & R
564,000367T)) Z % °

BMEERBEADERENIBEE - BE
MEER 2 ERE AP AEERBE
RE IR AT RTIRERE
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10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE

11.

COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately US$510,000 (2013: US$524,000) (Note 27(b)).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for

the years ended 30 April 2014 and 2013.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on:

10.

11.

RARER ARG REF

TIARRRIMBEHRER 2 ARG R ABG
S A1 49510,0003 7T (=& — = £ : 524,000
ZE7T) (K15E27(0)) ©

BRER
SREREF TIREA R AHEE AR E
R A R OB BT R B 2 E T
e

HE-_E—NER-_FT—=F#1XAA=+H
FFEEAEBRVEDRITEHEEHT A

B e

BREANESRNREATHIEAE

2014 2013
—E—MEF ==

Earnings |
Profit attributable to owners of the Company, &5 & I&% E 7K & F i B {5 B

used in the basic earnings per share ZARRREB AEE R

calculation (US$'000) (F==1) 4,456 5,332
Weighted average number of TERZ

ordinary shares InFEF 9 E
Weighted average number of ordinary S E GIRE N S 2 R B

shares in issue during the year used FiEA 2 FR

in the basic and diluted earnings BT EER

per share calculation ('000) ZInkEF e (FH) 683,504 683,069
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12. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTION

12. RERDIR

2014 2013
—E-IF ==
US$'000 US$'000
FTEx FET
Distribution, paid, of 14.64 HK cents B9 IR &A% AR 14.6478 (L
(2013: Nil) per ordinary share (ZZB—=4F: M) 12,863 =
Interim, paid, of 1.00 HK cent B4R HA RS B I i A 1.00 7B I
(2013: 1.60 HK cents) per ordinary share (Z=2—=%: 1.60/%%) 879 1,405
Final, proposed, of 1.21 HK cents BOR AR B S B E AR 2181
(2013: 1.20 HK cents) per ordinary share (ZEB—=%: 1.20}%%) 1,063 1,054
14,805 2,459

A distribution of 14.64 HK cents per ordinary share (“Distribution”)
was paid to shareholders of the Company on 28 June 2013
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting on 13 June 2013.

At a meeting held on 15 July 2014, the Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of 1.21 HK cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2014. This proposed dividend is
not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ending 30 April 2015.

AABBREA-_Z—=FEA=-+ /BB
BER-_ZE—ZF A +t=ZHL{T72KRE
BRAE LBB BERRZREEN
BREER 1464812 DR ([DIR])

E’:\:“—Eitﬂ‘f’ﬁﬁﬁ Zauﬁ
EERFRNEBE_T-—NFMNA=+H

IEFE 7 REBRR B AR BAL1.2178100 - it
BRURE BT AR ZET SRR P R A
EARE  BERMAHZE T —AFN
AZTHIFERRBEFPIRMNZRE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% BERRE

Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEMEXE BRRRE "E &t
Uss$'o00 Uss$'ooo Uss$'ooo US$'000
Group PN SrEST eI xR TER
30 April 2014 “Z2-MEMA=1H
At 1 May 2013: RZE—=FRF—H8:
Cost B R 1,894 4,370 376 6,640
Accumulated depreciation ZatifE (1,290) (4,133) (176) (5.599)
Net carrying amount BREFE 604 237 200 1,041
At 1 May 2013, net of RZZE—=FhH—8"
accumulated depreciation Bk 25T E 604 237 200 1,041
Additions NE 11 164 - 175
Disposals HE - - - -
Depreciation provided NEE RS
during the year e (539) (157) (60) (756)
Exchange realignment [E 5 1) - - (m
At 30 April 2014, net of RZF—NFNA=1H -
accumulated depreciation Mk RHTE 75 244 140 459
At 30 April 2014: RZZT—WFMA=+A :
Cost A 1,859 4,081 376 6,316
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (1,784) (3.837) (236) (5.857)
Net carrying amount RHFE 75 244 140 459
30 April 2013 “Z2-=fMA=+H
At 1 May 2012: R-ZZE——FHA—H:
Cost BXAR 2,825 4734 403 7,962
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (2,392) (4,430) (142) (6,964)
Net carrying amount REFE 433 304 261 998
At 1 May 2012, net of R-Z——FHA—H"
accumulated depreciation Bk 25T E 433 304 261 998
Additions NE 727 74 - 801
Disposals HE - - - -
Depreciation provided AEEREE
during the year ne (556) (141) (61) (758)
At 30 April 2013, net of RZZE—=FMA=+A
accumulated depreciation Nk 2478 604 237 200 1,041
At 30 April 2013: R-E—=FNA=+H:
Cost BAR 1,894 4,370 376 6,640
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (1,290) (4,133) (176) (5,599)
Net carrying amount REFE 604 237 200 1,041
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14. GOODWILL

14. BHE

2014 2013
=EF-mE ==

US$'000 Us$'000

Group rEE TR FET

At beginning and at end of year R F ) f2 FF 48 26,333 26,333
At end of year REFR

Cost (%N 34,827 34,827

Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (8,494) (8,494)

Net carrying amount REFEE 26,333 26,333

Impairment testing of goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating
units, which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

o Sales of merchandise; and
° Provision of services.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management. There are a number of assumptions and estimates
involved in the preparation of cash flow projections for the
period covered by the approved budget. Key assumptions include
the expected growth in revenues and gross margin, timing
of future capital expenditures, long term growth rates and
selection of discount rates. Management prepares the financial
budgets reflecting actual and prior year performance and market
development expectations. Judgement is required to determine the
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and changes
to key assumptions can significantly affect these cash flow
projections. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 11% (2013: 12%). The estimated growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year
period is no more than 5%.

AR E RS
FEECOPEETNIRSELEN (HEA2
B ERERIR -

e HEmEHE R
o RHARF

ReEFBAR A KE SR TR EGER
MEEET EATEERMNASREERE
Ttt/ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ{’ﬁﬂj NRLRER
AHE ERHUEHAREERHRAZR
ERERAR S RAEBRRKR G- 2
BREFURRREMNE ZAHRER - KK
BRI KRN RARRERBRX
IEEZ ERERUARMER RATSF
EREATSEREHZMBEE - XE
Eiﬁimugiﬁ\ HlJFﬁ};ﬁ)ﬂZI;z{Ej*“ %ﬁ?g
EHHIE - MEEBRIKNEHHZERS
mETa) H'Jﬁij(%&; ° Eﬁﬁmnéfﬁifﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BBRIRE B1100 (ZF—=5F : 120) ° H#A
EEHUIINREELENREREMAD
TEEAE R EAFHH5%
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14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

cash-generating units is as follows:

14. BE ®)
EERENRE ®

TREXRBRSELBEUNHE ZREEN

-

Sales of merchandise Provision of services Total
EmiHE R B R &5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-NF ZF--F ZR-NF ZF--F —T-HNF —T=F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Group REE FEx FET FEx FET TE TFET
Goodwill EES 26,333 26,333 - - 26,333 26,333
15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 15, AIftHESREE
2014 2013
—E—[E —E—=F
US$'000 US$'000
Group REH FTER FET
Club membership, at fair value grgs (RATE) 84 84
The fair value of the club membership is determined with reference EMEENATEDNK2ERERER W

to the price quoted by the relevant club.

BRETE -
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RBATIZERE

2014 2013

—Z2-mF —F—=
US$'000 US$'000
Company AT FEx FEx
Unlisted shares, at cost K EMRBS GRKA) = -
Due from subsidiaries A NGO 54,683 53,683
Due to subsidiaries FEfHBT B A TR IE (18,123) (2,840)
36,560 50,843

R N BB AR RIEREET
B BY\IEEERY -

The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

MEBARFEET

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

to the Company

registration ordinary share/ ARARGERER DL
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMEL, ERTLERRE
28 EauyES Sk AR AEE E# BE IEXK
Benchmark Profits Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBERAREHE E REER
Dowry Peacock Group Limited United Kingdom GBP300 - 60  Investment holding
EE 3005 4% REER
eServices Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
0 100,000 70 LEXEY
Ever Eagle Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERERARES 1% REEKR
T HEREERAT T mEER @
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIBRATZRE (®)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value (e
incorporation/ of issued 0 the Lompany
registration ordinary share/ FRTAEEREE L

Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
L ERTEZERRE

£5 Ry ES Sk AR AN B E# B FEXEK

Glory Sino Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Dormant
ERERRES (E LER

Golden Rules Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

BEERAF BB 17T REER

IGCS Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ZBERRES E REEKR

IGCS International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
EBERRES (E EERK

IGCS Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
5 28T EEEK

International Laboratory Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of laboratory

Services Limited B8 87T services
BT RB AR LA RERRTE RS
ISO International (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Provision of technical
Limited BE 1007 7T support and

management services,
and trading of home
lifestyle consumer
electronic products
RERMSER
BERRY - R
FEHREET

EmE

I
@ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T



16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. REEBRARIZRE &)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value i
incorporation/ of issued 0 the Lompany
registration ordinary share/ FRAEGEREE L
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ML, ERTEERRE
£ BN ES S T RAEE H# Mg FEXK
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding and
EEERRES 50,0003 7T procurement agent
REERRRERIE
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited EE 10,0008 7T REBAIE
Linmark Development (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited EBRRRES E REBARIE
Linmark Electronics Limited*# United Kingdom GBP12,500 - 60  Dormant
(In liquidation) B 12,500545 EmEK
(5&H)
Linmark Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
ERERRES (E REEKR
Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding,
W& (%) BRAR i 2B procurement agent
and trading of
merchandise
REER  REHE
REmE S
Linmark International Bangladesh Taka4,120,000 - 100 Procurement agent
(Bangladesh) Ltd.* )ik 4,120,000 RiERE

|
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIBRATZRE (®)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value (e
incorporation/ of issued 0 the Lompany
registration ordinary share/ FRTAEEREE L
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
L BERTEERRE
£5 Ry ES Sk AR A E E =k B FEXEK
Linmark International Hong Kong HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Hong Kong) Limited B8 200,000/8 70 procurement agent
MEBRR (F%) BRAA REERRIRELIE
Linmark Merchandise Consultancy ~ People's Republic of RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
(Shenzhen) Limited* China AR ¥1,500,0007T consultancy and
mE@RESZA ORI X product development
BRAE services
RETIS R
N A B BR 7
Linmark Westman Investments British Virgin Islands Us$ - 100 Investment holding
Limited RBEBARES RE REER
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
PERBRART] BB 17T EERK
Merchandise Creative, Inc. British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Dormant
EEERARES E EERK
Merchandise Creative Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Dormant
B 10,000/ 7 BEXB
Pacific Technologies Limited United Kingdom (GBP45,000 - 60  Dormant
®E 45,0005 £ BEEG
Power Path Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Dormant
BEARATF BB 17T EERK
Tamarind International British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited RBHRRHS (E REER
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RIBRBZRE (®)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

ANFRGERER DT

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued

registration

ordinary share/

Name and business registered capital Indirect  Principal activities
ML, ERTEERRE
£ Ay ES Sk AR AN I B Mg TEER
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 Investment holding
B V8T and trading of
merchandise
REERKERES
Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) People's Republic of RMB5,500,000 100 Procurement agent
Limited** China AR #5,500,0007T and trading of
AELES (L8) BRAR  HE merchandise
RERELEARES
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd.*" Bangladesh Taka20,000 100 Dormant
(In liquidation) FNHL 20,0005& R EES S
()
Trend Xpress, Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 100 Investment holding and
EEERRES (E provision of market
trend consultancy
services
REERRERTS
R B A RS
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding,
B R RAER A b 2T provision of market

trend consultancy
services and trading
of merchandise
REER - et
R B A RS
REmE 5
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

16. RMIB AT ZKRE (45)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Place of Nominal value (e
incorporation/ of issued 0 the Lompany
registration ordinary share/ FRTAEEREE L
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
EMEEL, BRTEEREE
% HMkELE AR A EE EE BiE TEEE
Westman Linmark (Thailand) Thailand Ordinary shares - 100 Procurement agent
Limited o3l Baht5,880,000 and RiERE
preference shares
Baht6,120,000
38 [1% 5,880,000 £
RESLK
6,120,000Z% 4k
Westman (Singapore) Private Singapore $$200,000 - 100 Procurement agent
Limited N3 200,000%7 3% 7T RERE
Westown Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Dormant
BRERAT BB 100,0007875 EmEi
# Linmark Electronics Limited was put in administration on 28 July 2009 which 2 Linmark Electronics Limited R =TT N FEHLA =+

was converted into creditors' voluntary liquidation on 25 January 2010.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

** Linmark Merchandise Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited and Tamarind Trading
(Shanghai) Limited were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under the law of the People's Republic of China. They were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young

BEREABEER

fe]

NBE#HEE YR _ZT-—TF-—A-_+HBHER

- ZENTB R RN I BB LK R E Pk E
HAib 2ok @5 AN B 2R K R FTER ©

~ MEFRELERD CRY) BRARARKRSHE
% (L&) ARABNRERBEEEEMRINE
BEME - ZERARLIFMBEBLRKETES
BT S A fa] B Ath 22 ok & = Al S5 765 P 2 BRABAR B B Y

global network. FiZ o
Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd. is in the process of members' voluntary . Trend Xpress (Bangladesh) Ltd. [EfE #£1TA% 3R B /A
winding up. % o

I
@ Linmark Group Limited Annual Report 2014
T



17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 17. R—REEQTZRE

2014 2013

=EF-mE ==
US$'000 US$'000
Group AEE FEx S
Unlisted investments, at cost REMKE (RKA) = -
Share of net assets E(REEFE 10 1
10 N

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

AEEAERAZEENT :

Percentage of

i AP
Particulars Place of
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held and business interest power sharing  Principal activities
FECBRTRG
=L Z#*tE R SR it B mERE REE BAIE IEXH
CSC Consultancy Co., Ltd.  Registered capital People's Republic 50 50 50 Dormant
b FBEHEABRAR of RMB1,500,000 of China YEXT
AMERARE i
1,500,0007T

The investment in the joint venture is indirectly held by the

Company.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's joint venture which is not material.

o)

BER -

RELERABZRETBHARAREERES -

TEREETBEARZASEEERF M

2014 2013
—2-IF —E2—=

US$'000 Us$'000

Group rEE FEx FEx
Share of the joint venture's loss for the year  JE(E& & A RIEEEE L

and total comprehensive loss for the year FEEHEEERE (1) (1)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREBERAZ
investment in the joint venture & 7 BRMEE 10 11

MEEBBREAF —T-NFFR @
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18. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

18. EFEBLIR

EERBEEE

FRREHEAE (BE)

EHIT

Decelerated
tax depreciation

Decelerated
tax depreciation

allowances allowances
BB I8 R R T IR
mERE RS
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=%F
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEH FEx FET
At beginning of year REH] (21) (115)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FARBEERPHR 2
profit or loss during the year (Note 9) FEIEFRIA (F5E9) 10 94
Gross deferred tax assets at end of year RERZIRIEFIBEEERAE (11) (21)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEERE
Accelerated Accelerated
tax depreciation tax depreciation
allowances allowances
DR 18 IR I8
mERE ERE
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
us$'oo0 US$'000
Group AEE FTEx FET
Gross deferred tax liabilities at beginning RE) R F 4 2 BIEFL IR
and at end of year BERE 2 2
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

18.

EERIE ()
BFEZ2Y ETETHELERARGE

TSR R T E5H o LA T TH 500 75 B8 3R
BEEH 2 AR BIEER RS R DN -

2014 2013
—2-mF —F—=

us$'ooo Us$'000
Group REE TER FET
Deferred tax assets EETRIBE B (11) (21)
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBE E 2 2

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RErE B ISARR R ERZ
consolidated statement of financial position RETIEEE R E (9) (19)

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EWE Z R

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RMEER BREZEREFIRBEZAH 2
BRERDITRAT

2014 2013

=EF-mE —F—=
US$'000 US$'000
Group rEH FER FET
Within 30 days 30K AN 3,871 3,769
31 to 60 days 31E260K 1,188 1,006
61 to 90 days 61290K 737 481
91 to 365 days 912365K 469 211
Over 1 year HBiE—F 342 456
6,607 5923
Impairment R (386) (467)
6,221 5,456
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 60 to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain REERE - AEEBRE RAKE 2 E
WORTR AR BB IES] - YRBEEEER
- ARBREGERR SREBETE
M aiRkzHE AEELERE
RWE ZEFEHRFEEMNERRRER
Hihpnog s B - BKE SRR &
ME - BRE SRR ZEREAEREATE

strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivables balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of the trade receivables approximates to its

fair value.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

19. EWE Z R (5

HE e

FEWE 5 IR BERBEFINT

2014

= ik —E-=F

US$'000 US$'000

Group REE T3 FET
At beginning of year NG 467
Impairment losses recognised (Note 6) ERRBEEE (Mixe) 27
Amount written off as uncollectible s A AT U Bl 2 RIE (106)
Exchange differences M= (2)
At end of year RELL 386

I
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
carrying amount before provision of US$386,000 (2013:
US$467,000) relate to customers that were in financial difficulties
or were in default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered
to be impaired is as follows:

19. EWE Z R (5
B % Bl BR M A2 B A386,0003 L (T — =
F : 467,000 7)) KERIFIEE 5 EKIRR
TEEBM RSN ERAEERE RSP
Bl 2ERREREHTAIKE -

KRB RES EYE PER BRI
T -

2014 2013

—E—NmF —E-=F

US$'000 US$'000

Group rEE FTER FET
Neither past due nor impaired 7 A8 EASORU(E 3,752 3,332
Less than 3 months past due BEADR=1EA 2,415 2,109
3 to 6 months past due BHI=Z= (@ A 54 11
Over 6 months past due %60 HAEE 38 /<[ A = 4
6,221 5,456

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

A 4530 ISR ME 2 FEMRE S R A BT
BF RS EFEELE0EN -

B 8 BB 30 RO (B 2 FE W IR B — HE R
SEERIHEACBIBIEFPEH R
BRELR BEER/BANBBERE
HEERE ARAEEERTIEREAE
8 URRBZFERDA 28K E -
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. AffRIE » RE R HtEWRIE

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
rEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= —E-mE —T—=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER FET TER FET
Prepayments SEUNE /@] 581 2,183 2 21
Deposits e 540 366 - -
Other receivables H fth FE Y FRIE 1,301 1,179 - -
2,422 3,728 2 21
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The A FBEESWEBEASRE - 5t A Lt 4
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables Z R A B MR B R 8k 2 B UK
for which there was no recent history of default. THER -
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. RekREEEER
Group Company
rEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —ZT—= —E-mFE —T—=%F
USs$'o00 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTER FET TER FET
Cash and cash equivalents B RBEE£EEER 14,611 24,335 248 134

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB") amounted to
approximately US$1,765,000 (2013: US$1,954,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under the
People's Republic of China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RIBERR  AEBMUAREINEZES
K SRAT 4588 #91,765,000% 7T (—Z T — =4 :
1,954,000 70) - AR EHER AR
fth & HE o SR - ARIE A B 2 INE E R AK
LaEE EEMMESERTE  NEBA
BREREETINE S RER ZRITEA
REHBABEMER o

RFRES B RAERNEHE 22D
Rl 8 o BTG R R —
E=EALS  BFAKEDERLH
B RAEMEBERZAEI S -
RATHE 4T 15 R AR R M08 2 (2

RAFERT °
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22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BNHEZERX

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHR BENESEREFIREZAHZ
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRERDITIAT
2014 2013
—E—NmF —E—=F
US$'000 US$'000
Group REE T3 FET
Within 30 days 30K AN 4,190 3,363
31 to 60 days 31260k 1,234 1,890
61 to 90 days 61290k 37 17
91 to 365 days 912365K 146 91
Over 1 year BiE—F 75 65
5,682 5,526
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNEZERRIINE B - W — M iz60
settled on 60-day terms. REABRIEE ©
23. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BstERARHEMEARIE
Group Company
rEH ¥ NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= —E-OmE —T—=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

Fxr TET FXrx TXET

Accrued expenses fE=tE 3,365 3,014 182 129
Other payables H fth e /IR 6,310 7,474 - =

9,675 10,488 182 129
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term BN KB A - FHER R M (E
of two months. B =

|
MERBMERAF —T-NFFR @
T



Notes to the Financial Statements
RS RERM T
30 April 2014

Z—PFEMN/=+H

24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

24. EEEKRER

30 April 2014 30 April 2013 1 May 2012
—E-mEF —E—=F —FE——F
MA=+H WMA=+H HFH—H
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FxEx FXE7T FE7T
Note (Restated) (Restated)
Group REE Bt & (# &%) (I &%)
Defined benefit plan TEREAE F AT 2 (a) 725 703 784
Other long term Hith REAE B RIK
post-employment benefits =l (b) 280 276 230
1,005 979 1,014
Notes: P 5E -
(a) Defined benefit plan (a) EERAEE

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its qualifying
employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits at 3% of their final salary on attainment of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged
to pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death,
post-employment benefits based on the number of years of services and final
average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 30 April
2014 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable to its employees
in Taiwan.

The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by the end of each
reporting period. Such a review includes the asset-liability matching strategy
and investment risk management policy. The trustees decide the contribution
based on the results of the annual review.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the life
expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out at 30 April 2014 by Hsu Mao-Chin
Actuary, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

AEEREMARERBERERIEHREER
TG E] - RIBZETE] - BEESSHRBRNFRE
BRZRBZEFDI0RNET

BREAEERIER  AEEAREAEREEX
1‘1‘&5&% BRKEHAFAZEN  LIREE
BEEREFHRRETFHFEZRKEF -
ZISEEEA_T MEM A=+ HRAEESRK

BHBEEET - RZIBEME -

ZEARE BREHREN L ENERKTF -
=5 a%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁﬁﬂ*&&ﬁﬂ R E BB
R o FREARBFEEBERREFRR

ZAtBIZ A EEE R W}\iﬂﬁfﬁ,ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ%‘%
mHERNE(CTE

ERENAEEREZROCHEERE  DR=F
—PENA =+ A BREKREE EEIRERE
CEEREMERET -
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 24. EEERNKRER ()

Notes: (continued) st : (8)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EFEEFTE (&)
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting period RBEPREAZ T EBERZOT :

were as follows:

2014 2013
—E-0mF —=—=
% %
Discount rate AL IR = 2.0 15
Expected rate of salary increases TEHEF & R R 3.0 2.0
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 30 April RZZE—MFENA=+THZERBREEHZRE
2014 is shown below: AT ¢
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
EREBANEE EREBANEE
R FEE
MM B ORd) D>  #ww S CRD)
% US$'000 % US$'000
Fxx FER
Discount rate ALIR & 0.5 (38) 0.5 43
Future salary increase KRFEERE 1.0 89 1.0 (73)
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method FRBREST 2 A RRBRERREZRE
that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligations as a result of EEZEEEZPMENTEENETIENTE
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting MEE °
period.
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Defined benefit plan (continued)
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in respect of the plan are as follows:

24. EEERKER &)

FicE - (8)

(a) EEEFFE (FH)

RiFaBRaRER T ERERNT

2014 2013

—2-mF —E==%

US$'000 US$'000

Fxx FET

Current service cost A R A 13 36
Net interest S FEE 10 13
Net benefit expenses recognised in administrative expenses AT B Sz #ERR 2 18 7B < )% 58 23 49
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 24. EEERNKRER ()

Notes: (continued) st : (8)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EFEEFTE (&)
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan ERENEERFEEEZ AFEZEHAT ¢

assets are as follows:

Remeasurement gains/(losses)

Pension cost charged to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
RERENRRKEHK RER2EUAENTBYE /(F8)
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in in other
At beginning Service Net inprofit  Benefit financial  Experience  comprehensive  Contribution Exchange  Atend
of year cost interest o loss paid  assumptions  adjustments income by employer  realignment  of year
BBR
A 29 A
Bsk E£2 Af2ERA

REQD  BERA RSEE 20 BARN  REEE  ERER i BEME ENEE RER
US§'000 US$'000  US§'000  US$'000  USS'000 US§'000 Us§'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  USS'000
e Tin  TEn  TEr FEn SE SE Tin Tin T TEm

2014 —E-ME

Defined benefit obligations ~ EERHE 875 13 13 26 - 28 18 46 - ) 926

Fair value of plan assets HEEECATE (1712) - 6] () - - 0) () (28) 4 (201)

Benefit lability BHaE 703 13 10 3 - 28 16 4% (28) (17) 725

2013 ZF-=F

Defned benefit obligations ~~ EBAHIEST 998 3 7 5 (149) 21) - (21) - (12 &5

Fair value of plan assets HEAEEZATE (214) = @ &) 143 = 3 3 (102) 2 (172)

Benefit bilty BilaE 784 3 13 4 - 21) 3 (18) (102 (10) 0

The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund administered RAEZERRMERIIA—KA A ERNERE
by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of plan assets as ZEGEL - SHEEEFEHAEZPREER
a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of the centrally SZFTEEERBATEZBNLAT ¢

administered fund are as follows:

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=
% %
Equity instruments AT A 53 48
Debt instruments BEBITA 34 36
Deposits F 10 13
Others Hith 3 3
The Group expects to contribute US$28,000 to its defined benefit plan in AEEEPR =T —RAFZEBEAAEERE
2015. 28,0003 7T ©
The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the PSR - TREMNEEFIAH127F -

reporting period is 12.7 years.
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24, POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Other long term post-employment benefits
The balance represents provision for long service payment as required by
certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee

24. EEERKER &)

FicE - (8)

(b) HttRHEESRAKEN
BRIIEE T RARRMEBRZHEHRE S
B o RIERAMIME R EIESRRE HA - Sie
BN E RBRRIR I FREN M LERRA

accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. FXAF o
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
Shares 8
2014 2013
—E2-mEF —T—=fF
US$'000 US$'000
TER FET
Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000/% & f% I 1E
US$0.02 each 0.023E 7T 2 BBk 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
683,569,279 (2013: 683,069,279) 683,569,279 (& — =4 :
ordinary shares of US$0.02 each 683,069,279) IR AR EIE
0.023 7T 2 E @R 13,671 13,661

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 500,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.70 per
ordinary share (Note 26), resulting the issue of 500,000 shares of
US$0.02 each for a total of cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately US$45,000. An amount of approximately US$12,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

RE A + 500,000 8 IR BT B 75 2 SRR HE
RER T BRREE70E T ETE (i
26) + EFE17500,0000% & f% E {H0.023 T
2D IEAR SR EARE (RS AT 4
45000 7T c RIEREEITER 5L
12,000 THERERBEER =R RE
j!E °
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A Share Option Scheme ("2002 Share Option Scheme") was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the then
sole shareholder passed on 22 April 2002 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The Company
terminated the 2002 Share Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme ("2011 Share Option Scheme") pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 29 August 2011. The 2011 Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2021. Under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Board or a committee thereof
may grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price per share of at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
relevant option; and (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer,
provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than
the nominal amount of one share. Written acceptance is required
on acceptance of the grant of options. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme to be adopted by the Company from time to time
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options in
cash.

26.

BT &

AAmzBEBREFE (BB -FERE
HED PR _ZEE-_FNA -+ - HRE
ERE-RRBBZRERMER =2
BERREE M S E kGRS E
HEECEEBAL RRRERERZ
T——FNAZ+NBERARAIKRRBF
ASLEBBEZ BEETBRARZRRIE-ZFZT
R B I R A — B B AR A B
([Z2——EBERENE]) - —F——F
BRETESE—BEARE_SE - —FIF -
BH+E - RIE-T——FERETS
EZeSEEZE e BERERTAE
BATUARBALRRG  ERRABEE
LB ATEMA 2T RRMERAYAA
A—REOREBERENFBHER
W (g RERAMEMZEARTER
B3 AR B IR A B L% B B AT 1 18 &
EBZ2FHUTE (AREEAE) » T
FEEBNDATSEN —RBRHDZEE -
BEBATREMNBRESEREEEE
e BB ——FEREFTSRAQA
TEBFHREMZEMEMEEEHE N
RITEZ BB ETER A BT 2R DA
ER B EABARRATRERITRAZ
300 ° ARRWEEZEHHEEETARSE
EEZEY R
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

26. BRESTE @)

The movements in share options under the 2002 Share Option NTREASZ_FHEREFE T 2B
Scheme during the year were as follows: IR E)
2014 2013
—2-F —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
hnREF 15 15
THEE BRERE TEE  EBREHE
HK$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T4 BRET T
At beginning of year REA] 0.803 17,200 0.803 17,300
Exercised during the year RERBITE 0.700 (500) - =
Lapsed during the year RERBE KK 0.830 (13,666) 0.700 (100)
At end of year REFLL 0.700 3,034 0.803 17,200

2014

the following exercise periods and exercise prices:

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period have

AT BRBEHRERITERBREZITE

HIRATRE(E -
—E-mF

Number of options

Exercise price* per share

Exercise period

BREHE BRITEE" 1TIEHR
'000 HK$
SE BT
3,034 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015

—E2-BFENA=-t+HHEZE
—E-RFNA=+WNAH
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
2013

26. BERESTE @)

— —

Number of options Exercise price* per share Exercise period
BB ES A BRRITEE" 1T1EH]
‘000 HK$
T BT
13,666 0.830 24 August 2008 to 23 August 2013
—EENFNAZTEBEE
T =FN\A=+=H
3,634 0.700 25 August 2010 to 24 August 2015
—E-TFEN\AZTHEBEZE
—E-AFNA=+IEAH
17,200

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

No share option was granted during the year (2013: Nil).

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

© R AR A SR RTAT R AR
B - WA 2 178 B P (iR -

FAVEFOBEE (ZF—=F: &) -

B R AR N 2 B 2 R FETHfE
RaNR - FRMAEERARRL B B
et - WET R ax F e R 2 R R 1k
o TRINEAZEARNBAIER :

24 August 25 August

Date of grant 2007 2009
—EZLF ZBEBAF

FHAMY NAZ+@HmA NA=t+EHRA
Share price at date of grant (HK$ per share) RIRH BHZIKE (BRET) 0.83 0.70
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IN#EFHKE (BB T) 1.00 0.25
Expected volatility (%) FEERR iR (%) 37.97 165.11
Risk-free interest rate (9%) R FZE (%) 4.16 1.55
Expected life of options (year) BE AR 2 FAETHARR (£F) 3.5t0 4.5 3.5 t0 4.5
Dividend vield (%) B (o) 4.32 8.89
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

27.

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 3,033,500
(2013: 17,200,000) share options outstanding under the 2002
Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 3,033,500 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately US$61,000
(2013: US$344,000) and share premium of approximately
US$212,000 (2013: US$1,432,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 3,033,500 (2013: 16,700,000) share options outstanding under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
0.4% (2013: 2.4%) of the Company's shares in issue as at that
date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 57
and 58 of the financial statements.

26. BRESTE @)

27.

BREZEAHARIBREBE=F2EFSL
BEAHE RBKRAEELEZTER
H o FHHIRIE R TRE - BB TR IE
ERRREBZEE  ROKKRERER -

B MAEY B B EMA R TE
2t Eh .

RBERR ARABERE-_ZST=F
B8 AR A 5T 81 3% T 1 AR 1T (6 2 B AR R
3,033,50019 (=& — = £ : 17,200,00017) °
g T2 BREEREITE  AIREARARA
AT EARLER B EHRARINETT
3,033,500/ A A Bl E AR - m AR A R AR ()%
B IR Bl 3E A14961,0005 T8 (Z T — =4 :
344,0003 70) N #9212,000% T (=T — =
F 1 1,432,00037T) CRINBREFITER) ©

P EARB SRR B ARAFRE-Z
T F R AT B M M R 1T E 2 BB AR
# 53,033,50017 (= & — = 4F : 16,700,000
7)) (AR B Z B B 3T Z 490.4%
ZE = 124%) e

it

() &K£H
REBRAFERBEFEZHES
R ESE 25| B 75 R R 557 %58
BZEREEREEHR o
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27. RESERVES (continued)

27. f#&E ®

(b) Company (b) &2AF
Share Capital
Share option redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus® earnings Total
BRE EXRE
R EE 1 e BEHES REEN B
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
i3 TER TR xR ST e TEn
Balance at 1 May 2012 R-E-—ERA—H&H% 2, 226 48 9946 5595 38,526
Total comprehensive income ~ FEZ2EMA
for the year bk - - - - 524 524
Equity-settled share option ~ SARRIES 2 B AR 1
arrangements 7 - 2 - - - 2
Share options lapsed during ~ ERKHZ
the year B - (2) - - 2 =
Final 2012 dividend paid BER-E——FREKE - - - - (439) (439)
Interim 2013 dividend paid B =F—=FFHERE 12 - - - - (1,405) (1,405)
At 30 April 2013 RZE-=FWA=1H 22,71 226 48 9,946 4277 37,208
Balance at 1 May 2013 RZE-=ER[-AEH 22,71 226 48 9946 4277 37,208
Total comprehensive income ~ FEZ2EMA
for the year k| - - - - 510 510
Issue of shares BT 35 - - - - 35
Exercise of share options BiTfeREE 12 (12) = = = -
Share options lapsed during S R%RZ
the year BE AR E = (145) = = 145 =
Share premium reduction BRI R E (12,800) - = 12,800 - =
Distribution ik 12 - - - (12,863) - (12,863)
Final 2013 dividend paid e - 12 - - - - (1,054) (1,054)
Interim 2014 dividend paid B =F—MWERERS 12 - - - - (879) (879)
At 30 April 2014 RZE-MEMA=1H 9,958 69 48 9,883 2,999 22,957
Representing: B :
Final 2014 dividend proposed B8k —Z—NERAK S 12 - - = = 1,063 1,063
Others Efh 9,958 69 48 9,883 1,936 21,894
At 30 April 2014 R-E-NEMA=1H 9,958 69 48 9,883 2,999 22,957
¢ The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the ! RARZERBHRIEREBESHEMKEZWE AR

fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued

in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the

contributed surplus account of the Company is distributable to equity
holders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would

after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

Befn 2 R FEBEBA R R AR 0 75 A i 31T
ZBROEEZEZE - REBFE—N/\—FAF
% ARRIZEZBRBREAIRD IR THEERE
A o R - ARBETHERTEE IR AR
SR E BB ERT EH D IK()IE & HES T E
Hrafl: dEEEZATEREEINEERE
R B BEATRRA AR B A0 i (B AR 2 AR AR
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28. DISSOLUTION OF A SUBSIDIARY 28. B —RHERQE
2014
—E-0F
Note Us$'ooo
LiEs3 TER
Net assets dissolved B BEFE -
Exchange reserve realised bE 5 SR 138
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary R — R B AR 2 EiE 6 (138)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in B —RXWB AR Z2RE R
respect of the dissolution of a subsidiary REFEEBERH ZRAFHE =
29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. HARMK
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not R E R - R B R A AR 3K
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RAEWT
Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —F-=F ZF-NFE —FT-=F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

FTXx T FEx T

Guarantees given to banks in MERTFTUATZHZ

connection with facilities BhE M M ERTT

granted to: YEH 2 & fR -

Subsidiaries Ll PNG| - - 21,283 21,283
As at 30 April 2014, the banking facilities granted to the R-Z—MEPA=+H  BEAQFMR
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by RITEL 2 BRI F THE R R 2 RI1TE
the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately & B 1% &) #96,700,000€ 7T (ZZE— =4 :
US$6,700,000 (2013: US$7,110,000). 7,110,000 7T) °
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

31.

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters,
furniture and equipment under operating lease arrangements. The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At 30 April 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

30.

REBERH

88 B RIS A0 T B R R B T 20
ZEf - BIESE  RAREE ZEH
&2 R BEAS 2 HREENERS
TR -

RZZE-—HEMA=+H  XEERED
AR EHER TR AN Z RK

follows: =ERESHKIEAT ¢
Office premises Furniture and
and staff quarters equipment
MAEBEUREIES R KRB
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EF-NFE —T-=F ZB-NFE —T-=F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Group rEH FEx FET FEx FET
Within one year —F R 2,328 1,899 121 103
In the second to fifth years, E_EERTE
inclusive (BIEEEMSE) 2,988 855 345 194
5,316 2,754 466 297

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no operating
lease arrangements (2013: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in Note
30 above, the Group had the following capital commitments for
the acquisition of property, plant and equipment at the end of the
reporting period:

31.

RBEERR AARUERELLEHER
B (ZE—=F:8)-

A

B b SCHS FE30RfT I 2 SR A T B ASESN - A
TRASERBERNREBEDE - BE
KB EAAESE

2014 2013

—E—-NF —T—=%F

US$'000 Us$'000

Group REE SEESTT FET
Contracted, but not provided for BRI AEREAE = 14

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have any
capital commitments (2013: Nil).

RBEER - AR A I E T[] & A A& HE
(ZE—=F : &) -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEBEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these a) BRAFBERREMILHAEZRS
financial statements, the Group had the following significant N REBEFRNEFMEATHITIA
transactions with related parties during the year: TEARS :
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-NE —FT—=
Name of related parties Nature of transactions Note us$‘ooo Us$'000
EREALEE REMHE B aE TER FET
Sky Fame Group Limited Rental expense (i) 204 308
AR EEBR AR ek
Wellbuild International Limited Rental expense (ii) 509 509
SEBREREAR AR Hekz
Notes: B

(i) Sky Fame Group Limited (“Sky Fame") was 100% owned by Mr. WANG
Lu Yen, an executive Director, and his spouse during the term of
the Tenancy Agreement (as defined below). The rental expense was
determined based on the market rate and floor area.

(ii) Wellbuild International Limited ("Wellbuild", together with its
subsidiaries, the "Wellbuild Group") is 100% owned by Roly
International Holdings Ltd., which is a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The rental expense was determined based on the market
rate.

(ii)

REERZ ERR T HiFE > AESE
EERAR ([AR]) B ERBLE (B
TEF) RERB2EEES - BERAXT
2EMELE MEAAEETE

BEEBEERAR (B8] EZREWE
RASEABBRER]) AARRAZER
BRERBEZRERARZERS - A
ERXN2EMEBRDEE °
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  Commitments with related parties

(1)

(i)

Linmark (HK) Limited (“Linmark HK") entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with Sky
Fame whereby Sky Fame agreed to lease to Linmark
HK a residential apartment for a term of 24 months
commencing on 1 May 2013 at a monthly rent of
approximately US$26,000 (equivalent to HK$200,000).

On 29 October 2013, Sky Fame gave a two-month
written notice to Linmark HK to terminate the Tenancy
Agreement with effect from 29 December 2013.

Tamarind International Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the “Tamarind Group") entered into
a master lease agreement with Wellbuild whereby
Wellbuild Group has agreed to lease to Tamarind
Group certain portion of a commercial building in
Shanghai, PRC for a term of 3 years commencing
on 1 April 2012 at a monthly rent of approximately
US$42,000 (equivalent to HK$330,000). The Group
expects the annual rent payable to Wellbuild for
the year ending 30 April 2015 to be approximately
US$462,000 (equivalent to HK$3,630,000).

(c)  Balances with related parties

(1)

At 30 April 2014, the Group had prepaid rent and
rental deposit of US$24,000 (2013: US$24,000) to a
related company.

Details of the Group's balance with a joint venture
as at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in
Note 17 to the financial statements.

32. BBEALIRS )
g4 RRiE A+ 2 A

(b)

(1)

WE (F8) ARAR ((MEE
) EpgTyEERE (R
EHE]) 0 B BERE [
BEBHE—FEFERAE A=
T — =441 5 — BT AEH24E
A & A £ #26000% T (48
£ 7200,000/87T) °

R=_FB—=F+A=+h1A8 " &
BRaMEEsEtmEAZER
ML ERER®E B2 —=F
+—AZF+hBRBER-

Tamarind International Limited
(EREWBARSE [ REML
£8)) BEEZITLEHEE W
#EBRUEEZEEBERENAMA
#942,0003% 7T (48 % 74330,00078
7L) MASAEEEE @A
B R KNE 2
B B-E——FmA ARG
BH=F AKERHPHEE=-Z
—AFMNA=t+HILFEEMNE
1Z 2 FEAE 49462,000% 7T (17
Z1123,630,000/8 7T ) °

R-_ZT—MNFEMA=+H K&
EEEN—RE@EEARZIEN
& M E % 424,000k T (=
T —=4F : 24,000%7TT) °

RFEHRR AEEH—REGE
N EHRF BRI B RR N E
17355 -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. BBEAERS @)

(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

) ZAEETZEREABZFHH

2014 2013
—F-mEF —F—=

US$'000 Us$'000

FER FET

Short term employee benefits o E B R A 1,656 1977

Post-employment benefits B 8 RIRE T

- defined contribution plans - ERRHERETE 72 70

Equity-settled share option expense VARR#E S 1+ 2 B AR i & R - 1
Total compensation paid to TRNFEBERAE

key management personnel =) FCE 1,728 2,048

Further details of Directors' emoluments are included in
Note 7 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a), (b) and (c)(i)
above constitute continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

The related party transactions in respect of item (d) above
constitute connected or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempt
from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The related party transaction in respect of item (c)(ii) above does
not constitute a connected or continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EEHMzE— T BERM SRR
B5E7 ©

EXF@E) ORCANEHNEBREALRS
BREMHRAF4AZIAE 2 ERER
% WEETEMRUEUATE T ZHE
ME e

EXFBWENBEBEBEALZZBXLETR
AIF4AEPIAE < FAER T EHERS -
HEHRE FHARAFMATIE T 2 BHR - F
EER - A RIBIRRIEZHRTE ©

3 S 07 B A £ % 5 3 T A
TR RIS 14AT T R E 2 B R E R
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group
Financial assets

33.

E@MIAER
EER BT ARRENRZRABLT ¢

REE
TREE

Loans and Available-for-sale
receivables financial asset Total
LEV TR THEESREE At
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
—¥-mF =% -¥-MF —F-=F -R-mF “F-=%
Note Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
izt TER FET TER TR Txn S
Available-for-sale financial asset ~ A/ HESREE 15 - - 84 84 84 84
Trade receivables EWE FEEm 19 6,221 5,456 - - 6,221 5,456
Financial assets included in STABFE
prepayments, deposits e R A
and other receivables YA EREE 2 1,841 1,545 - - 1,841 1,545
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHSZEER 21 14,61 24335 - - 14,611 24.335
22,673 31,336 84 84 22,157 31,420
Group rEHE
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
REBHERAIEZERAE
2014 2013
—E—OF —_z—=
Note US$'000 US$'000
k3 TER FEx
Trade payables FERE SRR 22 5,682 5,526
Financial liabilities included in ST AR E R K EA
accruals and other payables EAFEZzEmAE 23 6,310 7,474
11,992 13,000
Company ¥ /N
Financial assets ctRMEE
Loans and receivables
ERREWRE
2014 2013
—2—-NF ==
Note USs$'000 US$'000
B =E FER FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEIER 21 248 134

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have

any financial liability (2013:

Nil).

RIBERR - ARALEIAESHMERE (=
T—=F:8)-
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Notes to the Financial Statements
TS ERR BT =

30 April 2014

“E—NFENMA=+H

34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34. ST AZAFERAFEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the

AEBEARREMTAZRAERRF
B (GREEERERAFESEMEERIN W

Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: L
Group z}xiﬁ
Financial asset SRAE
Carrying amount Fair value
IREE AFE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —FT—= —E-mE —FT—=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FER FET FTER FET
Available-for-sale financial asset AJ &5 @& &= 84 84 84 84
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEEAGRAESABESEEER EKE
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial SR BNESEREXR - st AR KA -
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables ReEREMEWRHRIBZCREE  sTAE
and financial liabilities included in accruals and other payables FFERAREMENRBZ ERAEEZAT
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short B HHEEEmERS  RAEE LA
term maturities of these instruments. RezETLER 2 EHEEBE -
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair value of the available-for-sale financial asset is
determined with reference to the price quoted by the relevant
club.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instrument:

Asset measured at fair values:

Group
As at 30 April 2014

EMIAZAFERAFERER
()
AHEESRAEZ A FENELESH
B MERETE -

TREJIAKEEERTAZ AV EFERE
A
BRFEAEZEE -

5
R-ZE-NFMA=1+H

Fair value measurement using

RUTSEETAFETE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERTE EBEAXURE BEAFRTH
ZE WAE i A B
(5—F8) (5=fE) (B=E) ast
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEr FER FTER FER
Available-for-sale financial asset mJft HE S & E 84 = = 84
As at 30 April 2013 RZZE—=FMHA=1H

Fair value measurement using

RAATEEETATEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERMS EAAEE  EATAE
2 RE BAE  EBAE ;
(F-F) (E=®) (E=E) L
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FExT
Available-for-sale financial asset At HESGEE 84 - - 84

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2013: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair

value as at 30 April 2014 (2013: Nil).

The Company did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 30 April 2014 (2013: Nil).

R E-BRE-E2ZHELEATE
B2 AR RSRARIE (=
T=F ) -

RZZE-—NFOMA=1+H AEEILEFE

AEAFEAECERARE (ZF— =%
&) -

R-T-—MEMA=1+A  ARALEKE
WEAFENEZSRAERSBALRE (=
T—=7 ) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
TS ERR BT =

30 April 2014

“E—NFENMA=+H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

35. BiIEREEEEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. It is, and
has been throughout the year under review, the Group's policy
that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's short term interest-bearing
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risks.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held

AEENETEcm T ARRERe MIETH
B ZECRTANTERN N ARER
NEBEEELES AFENEZEEMS
MEEREE WEEHASELSEEL
WEKREZERREMNEZRRE - NE
EEEFEAR—BENAR  AEEZBR
ENEECRITA -

AEENERTAMEEN T ZARSH
Xk INERR - EERRERBES
R - E=ZgRHMIBTEEREZER
REVERER - At o

NRER
AEBAZOMSNEEFPREEEREN
SENFBH TG RRTEREH

@

7K 4 [ 30 4 5T 7 () SR B 50 6 20 A o
FI RS -

TERAAEMEEMAIZERAEEFTEN
BT - AL B EBRT AR F R AR E 8

constant, of the Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity.

gy |

Al

Be 2

BV GURIE ©

2014 2013
—E-MF —_F—=
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit in profit
(decrease) in before tax before tax
basis points and equity and equity
HY KREMRARER BREIENRER
#hm, CRd) #i, CRd) #Zm,Ord)
US$'000 US$'000
Group ANEH FEx FET
United States dollar =TT 5 7 12
United States dollar E7T (5) @) (12)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. MERBREEBEZERBER @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk SN L B
The Company's functional currency is the United States dollar RARMINGEE®, BET - RBHWER
and the functional currencies of majority of the subsidiaries AN ER BETLRABTL - REEMR
are the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. The Group's 2 FBREZFEFRENEZEREZN
transactions, trade receivables and trade payables are mainly il REEETIE -
denominated in these two currencies.
As the exchange rate of the United States dollar and Hong Kong RRETEBTEREN - EBTEER
dollar is pegged, management considers the foreign exchange AR T EINERBRIETEKN o AEH
risk in this respect is not significant. The Group has certain REBINEBHEBETRE  MZSEETF
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed BEREERENERERR - A - AREI
to foreign currency translation risk. However, as the net foreign XBzFNERBRAEL AEKN - MAS
exchange exposure of the foreign operations is not significant, the B B 8 FE A% 5 )R b SN [RLBR: ©
Group does not actively hedge this foreign exchange exposure.
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held AEBeERBRIAETRBTAIZE
in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong BBEENEREERAE BEREAENDTF
dollar to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level, B RN AIEXKE  WEBRERS
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure RERE AR IMNE R B o
should the need arise.
Certain monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB. ETEBEERBEUAARBIER - TX
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the IR EREHR  EFBEEMAISREE
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB exchange BRETE2BAT BEEKEERAEED
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit AP EEE  XEENRTARNEAR
before tax due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and HIERSIP A RE ) 2 URE ©
liabilities.
2014 2013
—EF-mF =% ==
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax
HMEE B 2 RR %t A % Al BR 7% A1 Vg )
EH (TR #i, CRL) =, CRd)
% US$'000 US$'000
Group REE SFEST FET
If United States dollar MZETH
weakens against RMB AR A 5 77 98
If United States dollar HZETT K,
strengthens against RMB AREHE (5) (77) (98)
T HEREERAT T mEER @
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. M¥EREERERIEE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, an available-for-sale financial
asset, trade receivables, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has certain concentration of credit
risk on the Group's trade receivables, as the amounts due from
the largest five debtors amounted to approximately US$2,191,000
(2013: US$2,196,000), representing approximately 35.2% (2013:
40.2%) of the Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up actions are taken promptly
to reduce the risk exposure or to recover overdue balances. The
Group will also continuously exploit new opportunities and forge
relationships with new customers with the aim of broadening its
clientele.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19
to the financial statements.

FERR
AEBREEERAREERINE=T
RGP  AEBEBRRREMBRAEERR
SNBEFPRETEREZER - 1IN &K
SEEeREERBEFRER At AE
BAZHERARIL AEAX -

rEBEpEREE (BERReAREEFE
HE —HEAHLESREE BUES
R e hEMRYTIE) ZEERR
TIREE T T EREZRE  MEARAR
FRZETAZEMEE-

HRASBERHLRTREBRITNE
=ARG FAEERRERR - EER
SHERERRES, /HF - wERITE
RER - RMEHR AEBREKRES
ERBEETEPRENGEERR  BRE
ANEEARKIEH2191,000 T (Z T —=
 :2,196,00037T) ' HASEEKE 5K
FRAI35.200 (Z B — =4 : 402%) ° & T
BEERR BEEFEEZRERKT -
AT 4R B B £ B ER #E 7T B - U K R e
2 B RIEHGE R - AEBINKESED
EHEHE WENEFELEE  UWHEE
HEERE -

FRASERREBEIRREENEER
B0 — F BB MR MK RKR M 195
B -
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35.

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

5

BRREEEEREE &)

AEENERRERSMARTEE &
BemBitEaREn It s Mg TE -

RIR T FT KSR IR A R0 A 1) AN SR B 10 ¥
SHRzERABIHEROT

Within one year

—FR

2014 2013

—E-NmF —E-=fF

US$'000 US$'000

Group KEE FEx FEx

Trade payables FETE SRR 5,682 5,526
Financial liabilities included in accruals and =+ AFEEHE FA K% B E < 3018

other payables ZaRasE 6,310 7,474

11,992 13,000

At 30 April 2014, the utilised banking facilities of US$6,700,000
(2013: US$7,110,000) granted to the subsidiaries subject to
guarantees given to the banks by the Company is repayable on
demand.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 April 2014 and 30
April 2013.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders'
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 15 July 2014.

36.

R-ZE—MEMA=1+H " HBRQRER
MUARRRIMBITIEERZEEBARITE
£6,700,0005 7C (==& — =4 : 7,110,000
JL) B ERKERE -

EXEHE
AEEEAREENTIERERERASH
ENEEEMMERBOEARL R - U
FREEBMEERSBRER -

A S BB A R 8 B T 8 AR
BRYUHETHE - BRBRBEEAR
5 - 7SR A 3R AR RUR A 2 AR
MRRREEALBTHG - AWERE
A2 BB BESEFRBE-_T-—MEF
MA=+AR-E—=FMA=THILF
B EED -

AEBMANDERRERS 2 AR -
it AR RS Rk
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|
MERBMERAF —T-NFFR @
T



Five-Year Financial Summary
hFEPBHRE

RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 30 April
BEMA=THLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—2-%F —T——F FT-ZfF ZT-=F ZE-0NF
1S$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FErn TEL TErn = S
Revenue Wigs 93,526 95,763 100,621 110,047 103,397
Cost of sales SHEMAN (67,200) (72,791) (77,123) (82,459) (76,427)
Gross profit 7 26,326 22972 23,498 27,588 26,970
Other income HAlr A 2,472 1362 1399 1023 1,346
General and administrative expenses  —fR RITHA X (25,647) (22,007) (22,014) (23,543) (23,329)
Restructuring costs EE s (1,362) (1,556) = = =
Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary —RMBARBE 2z Yz 5,255 - - - =
Loss on deregistration of branches BB Ma AR 2 ER (1,036) = - (193) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB A Az Wi - 13 191 - =
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary RE—ZMBLRRZE#E - - (97) - (138)
Operating profit Pyl 6,008 784 2977 4,875 4,849
Interest income FEUWA 53 5 55 55 7
Share of loss of a joint venture EhE—RaE8RAZER (4) 2) (1) (1) (1)
Profit before tax B BEA) 6,057 787 3,031 4929 4,855
Income tax (expense)/credit e (B),/ & (138) (142) (247) 403 (399)
Profit for the year attributable to ARREE AEE
owners of the Company FE R 5,919 645 2,784 5332 4,456
Dividends I8 6,548 272 1212 2,459 1,942
Distribution Ik - - - - 12,863
Earnings per share (US cent) BRAM (EAU)
Basic AR 09 0.1 0.4 08 0.7
Diluted s 0.9 0.1 0.4 0.8 0.7
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

At 30 April
RUA=+H
2010 20M 2012 2013 2014
“E-%F % —F--Ff —FT-=F Z®F-DmF
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TR Txx FET FTEr FEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&&5) (KEF) (KEH) (KED)

Non-current assets IEmEN A E 27,312 26,899 27,540 27,488 26,895
Current assets mBNEE 33,768 25,398 28,512 33,937 23,820
Total assets BEBT 61,080 52,297 56,052 61,425 50,715
Current liabilities mEaE (18,701) (14,398) (16,039) (17,700) (16,993)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,196) (1,008) (1,014) (979) (1,005)
Total liabilities BERR (19,897) (15,406) (17,053) (18,679) (17,998)
Net assets BEFE 41,183 36,891 38,999 42,746 32,717
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Corporate Information
NAVEH

Executive Directors
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
WONG Wai Ming

Independent non-executive Directors
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Executive Committee
WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

Audit Committee

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

Jakob Jacobus Koert TULLENERS

Remuneration Committee

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)
TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

WANG Lu Yen

Nomination Committee

WANG Lu Yen (Chairman of the Committee)
WANG Arthur Minshiang

TSE Hau Yin, Aloysius

Company secretary
CHEUNG Hoi Yin, Brenda

Registered office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Head office and principal place of business
1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Shareholder Information

R E

Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 10 May 2002

Stock Code : 915

Board Lot : 2,000

Par Value . US$0.02

Trading Currency : HK$

Financial calendar 2014
Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed (for ascertaining
shareholders' rights to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Ex-dividend date for final dividend
Register of members closed
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

30 April 2014
15 July 2014

26-28 August 2014
28 August 2014
1 September 2014

3-5 September 2014

5 September 2014

on or about 12 September 2014
mid of December 2014

*

subject to change

Final dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 1.21 HK cents per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 30 April 2014. Subject to shareholders' approval, the
final dividend will be paid in cash to shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Friday, 5 September 2014.

Dividend warrants will be despatched to shareholders on or about Friday, 12 September
2014.

Closure of register of members for final dividend
For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend in respect of
the year ended 30 April 2014, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 3 September 2014 to Friday, 5 September 2014, both days inclusive.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong
branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 2 September 2014.

Closure of register of members for annual general meeting
For the purpose of ascertaining the shareholders' rights of attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 26 August 2014 to Thursday, 28 August 2014, both days inclusive.
In order to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Standard Limited, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 August 2014.

Shareholder services
For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the Company's Hong
Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong
(with effect from 31 March 2014)
Telephone: (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong branch share registrar
promptly of any change of addresses.

Investor relations
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Linmark Group Limited

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre,
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2753 7373

Facsimile: (852) 2721 6554

Email: ir@linmark.com
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Linmark Group Limited

MEKERRQT "
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBEFREEMALZBRAF)

1123, Kowloonbay International Trade & Exhibition Centre
1 Trademart Drive, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FENENEERBEE RAERERRRES DL 123 E

Tel &% : (852) 2753 7373
Fax {5 H : (852) 2721 6554
http://www.linmark.com
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